
 

 

20 October 2022 

At 10.00 am 

 

Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic 
Calming Committee 

 



 

 

Disclaimer 

 

The Local Pedestrian Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee is established under 
the Roads Act. 

The Committee has no decision-making powers. It is primarily a technical review 
body required to advice on traffic related matters. 

The views expressed in this document are those of the Committee members, not 
necessarily the views of the City of Sydney Council. 

 



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 

  

Table Of Contents 
ITEM PAGE NO. 

 

 

1.   Confirmation of Minutes of Meeting 2022/08 held on 15 September 
2022  

 

1 

2.   Item for Committee Information - Smart Signage Trial - Elizabeth 
Street, Sydney and Chalmers Street, Surry Hills  

 

2 - 8 

3.   Street Event - Temporary Road Closures - Christmas in the City 2022  

 

9 - 13 

4.   Street Event - Temporary Road Closures - Wayside Chapel Christmas 
Day 2022  

 

14 - 16 

5.   Mobile Crane - Temporary Road Closure - Springfield Avenue, Potts 
Point  

 

17 - 19 

6.   Works Zone - George Street, Sydney  

 

20 - 22 

7.   Works Zone - Slip Street, Sydney  

 

23 - 26 

8.   Works Zone - York Street, Sydney  

 

27 - 29 

9.   Works Zone - Hutchinson Street, Surry Hills  

 

30 - 32 

10.   Works Zone - Sparkes Street, Camperdown  

 

33 - 35 

11.   Parking - No Parking - Wentworth Avenue, Sydney  

 

36 - 38 

12.   Parking - No Parking - Thurlow Lane, Redfern  

 

39 - 41 

13.   Parking - No Stopping - Little Dowling Street, Paddington  

 

42 - 44 

14.   Parking - No Stopping - Booth Street, Camperdown  

 

45 - 47 



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 

  

Table Of Contents 
ITEM PAGE NO. 

 

 

15.   Parking - No Stopping - Navins Lane, Zetland  

 

48 - 50 

16.   Parking - Timed Parking - Forest Street, Forest Lodge  

 

51 - 53 

17.   Parking - Timed Parking - Bourke Street, Waterloo  

 

54 - 56 

18.   Parking - 2P Parking - Newton Street, Alexandria  

 

57 - 59 

19.   Parking - P5mins - Dowling Street, Woolloomooloo  

 

60 - 62 

20.   Traffic Treatment - Raised Crossing, No Stopping, Timed Parking, Bus 
Zone, Taxi Zone and Car Share - Baptist and Marriott Streets, Redfern  

 

63 - 67 

21.   Traffic Treatment - Streetscape Improvements - Intersection of 
Wellington Street and Cope Street, Waterloo  

 

68 - 78 

22.   Traffic Treatment - Permanent Road Closure - Farnell Street, Surry 
Hills  

 

79 - 84 

23.   Other Authorities - PMNSW - Parking - Loading Zone and 2P Meter 
Parking - Darling Drive, Haymarket  

 

85 - 88 

24.   Schedule of Conditions  

 

89 - 96 

 



 
 

 

Structure and Operation of the Local Pedestrian Cycling and Traffic Calming 
Committee 

1. The views expressed in this document are those of the Committee members, not 
necessarily the views of the City of Sydney Council. 

2. The Local Pedestrian Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee in not a committee of the 
City of Sydney Council, but a Committee of the Transport for NSW. 

3. Council has been delegated certain powers from the Transport for NSW with regards to traffic 
matters on local roads. A condition of this delegation is that Council must take into account the 
advice of the Local Pedestrian Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee. 

4. The Local Pedestrian Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee has no decision- making 
powers. It is primarily a technical review body which is required to advise Council on 
traffic related matters. 

5. All proposals recommended by the Local Pedestrian Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 
must still be formally approved by either the elected Council or authorised Council staff 
(depending on the nature of the proposal). This can only be done when the advice of the 
Committee is unanimous. Where the advice of the Committee is not unanimous, Council must 
separately notify and obtain endorsement from the Transport for NSW and the NSW Police. 

6. There are four formal members of the Local Pedestrian Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 
each with a single vote: the City of Sydney, Transport for NSW, the NSW Police and the local 
State Members of Parliament or their nominee (who can only vote on issues in their 
electorate). There are also informal (non-voting) advisors who may attend. 

7. Members of the public are welcome to attend and speak to an item on the Local Pedestrian 
Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee agenda. Addresses to the Committee are limited to 3 
minutes, but this can be extended at the discretion of the Chairperson. If a member of the 
public wishes to attend, it is requested that they inform the Committee Secretary in advance on 
9265 9648. 

8. The Local Pedestrian Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee meet every third Thursday of the 
month at 10am in the Council Chamber, Level 1, Town Hall, 483 George Street, Sydney. 

9. Local Pedestrian Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee agendas, reports and minutes are 
available on the City’s Website: 
www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/Council/MeetingsAndCommittees

file:///C:/Users/lara.allman/Customers/Sydney/Template%20add%20ons/www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/Council/MeetingsAndCommittees


Local Pedestrian Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Confirmation of Minutes of Meeting 2022/08 held on 15 September 2022 

Decision 

1

Item 1.



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

 

Item for Committee Information - Smart Signage Trial - Elizabeth Street, 
Sydney and Chalmers Street, Surry Hills 

TRIM Container No.: [insert TRIM container number] 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that the Committee note the trialling of Smart Signage at the following 
locations: 

(A) Western side of Elizabeth Street, Sydney between Liverpool Street and Park Street; 
and  

(B) Eastern and western side of Chalmers Street, Surry Hills between Cleveland Street 
and Devonshire Street.: 

 

 

Voting Members for this Item 

 

Voting Members Support Object 

City of Sydney [Insert] [Insert] 

Transport for NSW [Insert] [Insert] 

NSW Police – Surry Hills PAC [Insert] [Insert] 

Representative for the Member for Sydney [Insert] [Insert] 

 
 
 

Advice 

Advice will be updated after the meeting. 

 

2

Item 2.



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Background 

Transport for NSW (Transport) is delivering the Smart Technology Corridors Program, a 
NSW Government initiative to reduce road congestion across Greater Sydney and NSW 
regional centres.   

As part of this program, Transport will be trialling Smart Signage in Sydney to assess the 
potential benefits of new technology in improving kerbside customer information and 
reducing congestion in key traffic locations. 

During the trial, Smart Signage panels will replace multiple existing parking signs with one, 
easy to understand digital sign. The signs will display current and upcoming parking 
restrictions, providing customers with simple, accurate, real-time information at busy 
kerbside locations. 

Comments 

The technology will be trialled at two locations. Six signs will be implemented on the western 
side of Elizabeth Street, Sydney between Liverpool Street and Park Street. 21 signs will be 
implemented on both the eastern and westerns side of Chalmers Street, Surry Hills, between 
Cleveland Street and Devonshire Street.  

The chosen trial locations feature multiple kerbside restrictions such as clearways, timed 
parking, bus zones, no stopping zones and loading zones, depending on the time of day. 

The Smart Signage trials will be conducted for up to 18 months and at the end of the trials, 
Transport will undertake a full review on the effectiveness of the Smart Signage Program. 
Decisions regarding the next stages of the program will be taken based on the overall 
performance of the trials. 

Consultation 

Community feedback on the Smart Signage trials can be made at 
projects@transport.nsw.gov.au or online at https://yoursay.transport.nsw.gov.au/smart-sign. 

Financial 

All costs associated with the proposal will be borne by Transport. 

LAWRENCE WARREN, PROJECT MANAGER, TRANSPORT FOR NSW 

3



 

Transport.nsw.gov.au   Page 1 of 3 

OFFICIAL 

What is happening?   
Transport for NSW (Transport) is delivering the Smart 

Technology Corridors Program, a NSW Government 

initiative to reduce road congestion across Greater 

Sydney and NSW regional centres. 
 

As part of this program, Transport will be trialling Smart 

Signage in Sydney to assess the potential benefits of new 

technology in improving kerbside customer information 

and reducing congestion in key traffic locations. 
 

During the trial, Smart Signage panels will replace existing 
parking signs with one, easy to understand digital sign. 
The signs will display current and upcoming parking 
restrictions, providing customers with simple, accurate, 
real-time information at busy kerbside locations. 
 

Chalmers Street, Surry Hills between Cleveland Street and 

Devonshire Street, has been selected as a suitable 

location for a Smart Signage trial. The chosen trial 

location features a clearway as well as other uses such as 

timed parking, a bus zone, no stopping zone and loading 

zone, depending on the time of day.  

A trial will also be run at Elizabeth Street, Sydney CBD 

between Park Street and Liverpool Street. 

What do I need to know?  

From Sunday 6 November to Thursday 10 November and 
Sunday 13 November to Thursday 17 November 2022, 
work will be carried out to install 21 Smart Signs along 
the western and eastern sides of Chalmers Street 
between Cleveland Street and Devonshire Street. On 
Sunday 20 November, night work will be carried out to 
prepare for the start of the trial. 
 

The installation will be completed at night between 
8:00pm and 5:00am, Sunday to Thursday. Equipment 
needed to carry out this work includes concrete saws, 
grinders, hand tools and a vacuum excavation truck. To 
minimise impacts on the community, the noisiest 
activities will be completed before midnight. No 

vegetation will be removed. Traffic controllers will be on 
site to manage partial lane closures when required. 
 

From Monday 21 November 2022, we will be conducting 
a trial on the effectiveness of the Smart Signage 
technology as well as evaluating community feedback. 
The trial is expected to continue for up to 18 months. 
 

The Smart Signage technology will be remotely operated 
and maintained by Transport for the duration of the trial. 
As part of the trial, cameras attached to the panels 
ensure they accurately communicate kerbside 
restrictions. These cameras only capture the smart 
signage display.  
 

Importantly, there are no changes to the existing 
kerbside restrictions, or enforcement regulations due 
to the introduction of the Smart Signage trial.  
 

 
Image: A Smart Sign prototype. 

Smart Signage Trial  
Chalmers St, Surry Hills between Cleveland St and Devonshire St 

4



 

Transport.nsw.gov.au   Page 2 of 3 

OFFICIAL 

    
 
       

 

Provide your feedback  
Transport is seeking feedback on the Smart Signage trial 

to determine if it meets its objectives of providing clearer 

information for customers. We would also like to know if 

there are any issues or concerns with using this 

technology. 

To Have Your Say, please take part in our survey 

https://yoursay.transport.nsw.gov.au/smart-signage  

You can also contact us to provide feedback or for further 

information:  

Email: projects@transport.nsw.gov.au     
Phone: 1800 684 490 
For more information: 
https://www.transport.nsw.gov.au/STCP 
 
For urgent enquiries or complaints regarding construction 
activities, call Transport’s 24/7 response line 1800 775 
465.

 Translating and interpreting service  

If you need help understanding this information, please contact the Translating and Interpreting Service on     131 450 and ask 

them to call us on 1800 684 490. 

5

mailto:projects@transport.nsw.gov.au
https://aus01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.transport.nsw.gov.au%2FSTCP&data=05%7C01%7CNicola.Thompson%40transport.nsw.gov.au%7Cce85545cebf34228b0d708da858e2618%7Ccb356782ad9a47fb878b7ebceb85b86c%7C0%7C0%7C637969142812381513%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=gn76lO%2B%2Bzi6QfLJfQRA4RNs0xSSjY50YUZrKZG3wm8c%3D&reserved=0


Transport.nsw.gov.au   Page 3 of 3 

OFFICIAL 

 

 October 2022 
Pub No 1 

Privacy Transport for NSW (“TfNSW”) is subject to the Privacy and Personal Information Protection Act 1998(“PPIP Act”) which requires that we comply with the 
Information Privacy Principles set out in the PPIP Act. All information in correspondence is collected for the sole purpose of assisting in the delivery this project. 
The information received, including names and addresses of respondents, may be published in subsequent documents unless a clear indication is given in the 
correspondence that all or part of that information is not to be published. Otherwise we will only disclose your personal information, without your consent, if 
authorised by the law. Your personal information will be held by us at 27 Argyle Street, Parramatta. You have the right to access and correct the information if 
you believe that it is incorrect. 

 

6



 

Transport.nsw.gov.au   Page 1 of 2 

OFFICIAL 

What is happening?   
Transport for NSW (Transport) is delivering the Smart 

Technology Corridors Program, a NSW Government 

initiative to reduce road congestion across Greater 

Sydney and NSW regional centres. 
 

As part of this program, Transport will be trialling Smart 

Signage in Sydney to assess the potential benefits of new 

technology in improving kerbside customer information 

and reducing congestion in key traffic locations. 
 

During the trial, Smart Signage panels will replace existing 
parking signs with one, easy to understand digital sign. 
The signs will display current and upcoming parking 
restrictions, providing customers with simple, accurate, 
real-time information at busy kerbside locations. 
 

The western side of Elizabeth Street, Sydney CBD 

between Park Street and Liverpool Street, has been 

selected as a suitable location for a Smart Signage trial. 

The chosen trial location features multiple kerbside 

restrictions such as timed parking, a bus zone, no 

stopping zone and loading zone, depending on the time 

of day.  

The technology will also be trialled on Chalmers Street, 

between Cleveland Street and Devonshire Street, Surry 

Hills.  

What do I need to know?  

From Sunday 23 October to Thursday 27 October 2022, 
work will be carried out to install 6 Smart Signs along the 
western side of Elizabeth Street between Park Street and 
Liverpool Street. On Sunday 30 October, night work will 
be carried out to prepare for the start of the trial. 
 

The installation will be completed at night between 
8:00pm and 5:00am, Sunday to Thursday. Equipment 
needed to carry out this work includes concrete saws, 
grinders, hand tools and a vacuum excavation truck. To 
minimise impacts on the community, the noisiest 
activities will be completed before midnight. No 

vegetation will be removed. Traffic controllers will be on 
site to manage partial lane closures when required. 
 

From Monday 31 October 2022, we will be conducting a 
trial on the effectiveness of the Smart Signage technology 
as well as evaluating community feedback. The trial is 
expected to continue for up to 18 months. 
 

The Smart Signage technology will be remotely operated 
and maintained by Transport for the duration of the trial. 
As part of the trial, cameras attached to the panels 
ensure they accurately communicate kerbside 
restrictions. These cameras only capture the smart 
signage display.  
 

Importantly, there are no changes to the existing 
kerbside restrictions, or enforcement regulations due 
to the introduction of the Smart Signage trial.  
 

 
Image: A Smart Sign prototype. 

Smart Signage Trial  
Elizabeth St, Sydney CBD between Park St and Liverpool St 

7



 

Transport.nsw.gov.au   Page 2 of 2 

OFFICIAL 

    
 
  

 

Provide your feedback  
Transport is seeking feedback on the Smart Signage trial 

to determine if it meets its objectives of providing clearer 

information for customers. We would also like to know if 

there are any issues or concerns with using this 

technology. 

To Have Your Say, please take part in our survey 

https://yoursay.transport.nsw.gov.au/smart-signage  

You can also contact us to provide feedback or for further 

information:  

Email: projects@transport.nsw.gov.au     
Phone: 1800 684 490 
For more information: 
https://www.transport.nsw.gov.au/STCP 
 
For urgent enquiries or complaints regarding construction 
activities, call Transport’s 24/7 response line 1800 775 
465.

 

 October 2022 
Pub No 1 

Privacy Transport for NSW (“TfNSW”) is subject to the Privacy and Personal Information Protection Act 1998(“PPIP Act”) which requires that we comply with the 
Information Privacy Principles set out in the PPIP Act. All information in correspondence is collected for the sole purpose of assisting in the delivery this project. 
The information received, including names and addresses of respondents, may be published in subsequent documents unless a clear indication is given in the 
correspondence that all or part of that information is not to be published. Otherwise we will only disclose your personal information, without your consent, if 
authorised by the law. Your personal information will be held by us at 27 Argyle Street, Parramatta. You have the right to access and correct the information if 
you believe that it is incorrect. 

 

Translating and interpreting service  

If you need help understanding this information, please contact the Translating and Interpreting Service on     131 450 and ask 

them to call us on 1800 684 490. 

8

mailto:projects@transport.nsw.gov.au
https://aus01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.transport.nsw.gov.au%2FSTCP&data=05%7C01%7CNicola.Thompson%40transport.nsw.gov.au%7Cce85545cebf34228b0d708da858e2618%7Ccb356782ad9a47fb878b7ebceb85b86c%7C0%7C0%7C637969142812381513%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=gn76lO%2B%2Bzi6QfLJfQRA4RNs0xSSjY50YUZrKZG3wm8c%3D&reserved=0


Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Street Event - Temporary Road Closures - Christmas in the City 2022 

TRIM Container No.: 2022/495892 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that the Committee endorse the temporary road closure for the Christmas 
in the City 2022 on Saturday, 26 November 2022 from 7pm to 8.45pm subject to the 
following conditions:- 

(A) The Applicant must comply with the temporary road closure conditions as stipulated in 
Schedule A of this agenda. 

(B) The Applicant must contact the Sydney City PAC to discuss deployment of user pay 
police for the event. 

(C) The Applicant must contact the City’s Venue Management Unit to discuss the event. 

(D) The Applicant is to obtain a Road Occupancy Licence from the Transport Management 
Centre prior to commencement of works. 

(E) The Applicant must provide a telephone number of the supervisor responsible for the 
proposed event and include contact details in the notification letters to be distributed to 
affected stakeholders. 

(F) The Applicant must contact Sydney Buses and arrange and pay for the rerouting of 
bus services around the closure, the temporary relocation of bus stops and any 
additional staff required] 

 

Voting Members for this Item 

 

Voting Members Support Object 

City of Sydney [Insert] [Insert] 

Transport for NSW [Insert] [Insert] 

NSW Police – Sydney City PAC [Insert] [Insert] 

Representative for the Member for Sydney [Insert] [Insert] 

 
 
 

9

Item 3.



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Advice 

Advice will be updated after the meeting. 

 

Background 

The City has applied for the temporary road closure of Pitt Street, Sydney between Hunter 
and King Streets for the Christmas in the City 2022 on Saturday, 26 November 2022 from 
7pm to 8.45pm. 

Comments 

The Christmas in the City 2022 is an new event that requires the temporary closure of City 
streets and traffic detours around the event route. 

Road Closures 

 Pitt Street, Sydney between Hunter and King Streets - Saturday 26 November, 7pm to 
8.45pm. 

There are currently no other approved temporary road closures proposed to take place on 
the same day. 

Consultation 

The Applicant will be required to notify affected stakeholders as stipulated in Schedule A. 

Financial 

All costs associated with the proposed closure will be borne by the Applicant. 

GANESH VENGADASALAM, SENIOR TRAFFIC ENGINEER 

10



11



12



 

2022 CHRISTMAS IN MARTIN PLACE TMP 
 VERSION 1.0 
 
 18  

Sleigh Route from Circular Quay to Pitt St Martin Place  
 

 

13



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Street Event - Temporary Road Closures - Wayside Chapel Christmas Day 2022 

TRIM Container No.: 2022/477370 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that the Committee endorse the temporary road closures for the Wayside 
Chapel Christmas Day 2022 on Sunday, 25 December 2022 from 7am to 5pm subject to the 
following conditions: 

(A) The Applicant must comply with the temporary road closure conditions as stipulated in 
Schedule A of this agenda. 

(B) The Applicant must contact the Kings Cross PAC to discuss deployment of user pay 
police for the event. 

(C) The Applicant must contact the City’s Venue Management Unit to discuss the event. 

(D) The Applicant must provide a telephone number of the supervisor responsible for the 
proposed event and include contact details in the notification letters to be distributed to 
affected stakeholders. 

 

Voting Members for this Item 

 

Voting Members Support Object 

City of Sydney [Insert] [Insert] 

Transport for NSW [Insert] [Insert] 

NSW Police – Kings Cross PAC [Insert] [Insert] 

Representative for the Member for Sydney [Insert] [Insert] 

 
 
 

Advice 

Advice will be updated after the meeting. 

 

14

Item 4.



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Background 

The Wayside Chapel has applied for the temporary road closures in Potts Point for Wayside 
Chapel Christmas Day 2022 on 25 December 2022 from 7am to 5pm: 

 Hughes Street between Macleay and Tusculum Streets; and  

 Orwell Lane between Orwell and Hughes Streets.  

Comments 

The Wayside Chapel is an annual event that requires the temporary closure of City streets 
and traffic detours around the event route. 

There are currently no other approved temporary road closures proposed to take place on 
the same day. 

Consultation 

The Applicant will be required to notify affected stakeholders as stipulated in Schedule A. 

Financial 

All costs associated with the proposed closures will be borne by the Applicant. 

TANZ ALAM, ENGINEERING TRAFFIC OFFICER 

15



Manning St

Hughes St

Greenknowe Ave

M
a

c
le

a
y

 S
t

O
rw

e
ll
 L

n

Orwell St

T
u

s
c

u
lu

m
 S

t

SIDE  ROAD
CLOSED

CHANGED
TRAFFIC

CONDITIONS

SIDE  ROAD
CLOSED

CHANGED
TRAFFIC

CONDITIONS

C
H

A
N

G
E

D
T

R
A

F
F

IC
C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S

D
E

T
O

U
R

A
H

E
A

D

R
O

A
D

C
L

O
S

E
D

D
E

T
O

U
R

DETOUR

Christmas at Wayside

Application: 0700 SUN 25 DEC 2022 through to 1700 SUN 25 DEC 2022.
Location: UBD Map 4, Grid 4E. Drawing NTS  for A3 or larger colour print only.
© ACESGroup 2022. COMMERCIAL IN CONFIDENCE. TGS developed in reference with
AS1742 (series) and Transport for NSW 'Traffic Control at Worksites' Technical Manual
(V6.1, Feb 2022).
Instructions and Notes:
1. TCP to be set down following the sequence indicated with yellow numbered tags, and 

removed in reverse sequence only after through check that the carriageway is clear of 
obstructions, debris, and pedestrians returned to footpaths;

2. *700mm cones to be used to highlight advance warning signs.

1 2

4

5

6

7

8

9

R
O

A
D

C
L

O
S

E
D

EQUIPMENT

x 10

ROAD CLOSED

x 4

x 3

x 2

x 4

SIDE  ROAD
CLOSED

DETOUR x 3

END
DETOUR

x 1 DETOUR
AHEAD x 1

N

Event Space

11

3

10

CHANGED
TRAFFIC

CONDITIONS

E
N

D
D

E
T

O
U

R

C
H

A
N

G
E

D
T

R
A

F
F

IC
C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S

10

11

assure avert16



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Mobile Crane - Temporary Road Closure - Springfield Avenue, Potts Point 

TRIM Container No.: 2022/473827 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that the Committee endorse the temporary road closure of Earl Place and 
Springfield Avenue, between Earl Street and Springfield Lane (three lanes), from 7am to 
3pm on Wednesday 2 November 2022, Wednesday 9 November 2022 and Wednesday 16 
November 2022, subject to the following conditions: 

(A) The Applicant must comply with the temporary road closure conditions as mentioned 
in Schedule B of this agenda. 

(B) The Applicant must comply with any other conditions imposed by City’s Construction 
Regulation Unit. 

(C) The Applicant has indicated the 3 November, 10 November and 17 November 2022 as 
a contingency date. 

(D) The Applicant must contact the Kings Cross PAC  to discuss deployment of user pay 
police for the road closure. 

(E) The Applicant must provide a telephone number of the supervisor responsible for the 
proposed closure and include contact details in the notification letters to be distributed 
to affected stakeholders. 

 

Voting Members for this Item 

 

Voting Members Support Object 

City of Sydney [Insert] [Insert] 

Transport for NSW [Insert] [Insert] 

NSW Police – Kings Cross PAC [Insert] [Insert] 

Representative for the Member for Sydney [Insert] [Insert] 

 
 
 

17

Item 5.



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Advice 

Advice will be updated after the meeting. 

 

Background 

Rhino Traffic Control Services Pty. Ltd. has applied for the temporary road closure of Earl 
Place and Springfield Avenue, between Earl Street and Springfield Lane, from 7am to 3pm 
on Wednesday 2 November 2022, Wednesday 9 November 2022 and Wednesday 16 
November 2022. 

Comments 

The proposed temporary road closure is required to allow a mobile crane to be used to lift 
materials into site on the frontage of 24-30 Springfield Avenue, Potts Point. 

The Applicant has provided a site-specific Traffic Control Plan that includes details of 
barricades, signs, flagmen and other traffic devices to implement the proposed road closure. 

There are currently no other approved temporary road closures proposed to take place on 
the same day in this area. 

The temporary road closure will not affect any other properties, as local access will be 
provided at all times and alternative access routes are available nearby. 

A Traffic Management Plan (TMP) for the temporary road closure was approved by 
Transport for NSW (TFNSW). 

Consultation 

The Applicant will be required to notify affected stakeholders as stipulated in Schedule B. 

Financial 

All costs associated with the proposed closure will be borne by the applicant. 

 

TERRY XU, A/TRAFFIC WORKS COORDINATOR 

18



19



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Works Zone - George Street, Sydney 

TRIM Container No.: 2022/413194 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that the Committee endorse the reallocation of the kerb space on the 
eastern side of George Street, Sydney, between the points 42.6 metres and 77.6 metres 
north of Essex Street as "Works Zone 7am-7pm Mon-Fri, 7am-5pm Sat" and "No Stopping 
All Other Times", subject to the following conditions: 

(A) The Applicant must comply with the Works Zone conditions as stipulated in Schedule 
C of this agenda. 

(B) The Applicant must obtain separate approval from the City's Tree Management Team 
prior to implementation of the Works Zone. 

(C) The Applicant is not permitted to operate any part of a crane over a public road or 
hoist/swing goods from a Works Zone across or over any part of a public road by 
means of a lift, hoist or crane unless a separate approval has been obtained from the 
City's Construction and Building Certification Services Unit as required under Section 
68 of the Local Government Act 1993 and Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993. 

(D) The Applicant must notify adjacent properties of the Works Zone at least 14 days prior 
to installation and must provide a telephone number of the supervisor responsible for 
the proposed Works Zone and include contact details in the notification letter to be 
distributed to affected stakeholders. 

(E) If the Works Zone is installed on a footpath, then on removal of the Works Zone, the 
applicant must restore the footpath to its original condition. All works must be 
undertaken to the City’s standards and specifications and to the satisfaction of the 
City’s Public Domain team. 

(F) The Applicant must have an endorsed Construction Traffic Management Plan (CTMP) 
from TFNSW prior to Works Zone being implemented. 

Voting Members for this Item 

 

Voting Members Support Object 

City of Sydney [Insert] [Insert] 

Transport for NSW [Insert] [Insert] 

20

Item 6.



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

NSW Police – Sydney City PAC [Insert] [Insert] 

Representative for the Member for Sydney [Insert] [Insert] 

 
 
 

Advice 

Advice will be updated after the meeting. 

 

Background 

Lendlease Building Pty Ltd has requested a 35 metre indented long Works Zone in George 
Street, Sydney. 

The Works Zone is to facilitate construction works at 1 Alfred Street, Sydney. 

Comments 

The kerb space on the eastern side of George Street, Sydney between Essex Street and 
Alfred Street where the parking changes are proposed is currently signposted as "No 
Stopping".  

The Works Zone is intended to operate from 7am - 7pm Monday - Friday and 7am - 5pm 
Saturday in accordance with the Development Consent Conditions. 

The street is wide enough to allow the Works Zone to be installed in an indented bay on the 
existing footpath without affecting traffic flow or property access. 

 

Consultation 

The applicant must notify adjacent properties at least 14 days prior to the implementation of 
the Works Zone. 

Financial 

All costs associated with the Works Zone will be borne by the Applicant. 

ALEXANDER SAUNDERS, SENIOR TRAFFIC ENGINEER 

21



not to scale

Proposal
George Street, Sydney
Proposed Works Zone

Source: nearmap 21 December 2021

ProposedExisting
No Stopping Works Zone

7am-7pm Mon-Fri
7am-5pm Sat
No Stopping Other Times

Indented Bay

Section of footpath to be
removed to create an
indented Works Zone.
2 meter wide footpath to
be maintained.

22



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Works Zone - Slip Street, Sydney 

TRIM Container No.: 2022/487070 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that the Committee endorse the following traffic and parking changes in 
Slip Street, Sydneyreallocation of the kerb space in Slip Street, Sydney, west of Sussex 
Street: 

(A) Reallocation of the kerb space on the northern side of Slip Street, between the points 
14 metres and 33 metres west of Sussex Street as "Works Zone 7am-7pm Mon-Fri 
7am-5pm Sat" and "No Parking All Other Times"; 

(B) Reallocation of the kerb space on the southern side of Slip Street, between the points 
14 metres and 36 metres west of Sussex Street as "No Stopping"; and 

(C) Relocate the double barrier line in Slip Street to provide adequate road space for the 
installation of the proposed Works Zone. 

subject to the following conditions: 

(D) The Applicant must comply with the Works Zone conditions as stipulated in Schedule 
C of this agenda. 

(E) The Applicant must obtain separate approval from the City's Tree Management Team 
prior to implementation of the Works Zone. 

(F) The Applicant is not permitted to operate any part of a crane over a public road or 
hoist/swing goods from a Works Zone across or over any part of a public road by 
means of a lift, hoist or crane unless a separate approval has been obtained from the 
City's Construction and Building Certification Services Unit as required under Section 
68 of the Local Government Act 1993 and Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993. 

(G) The Applicant must notify adjacent properties of the Works Zone at least 14 days prior 
to installation and must provide a telephone number of the supervisor responsible for 
the proposed Works Zone and include contact details in the notification letter to be 
distributed to affected stakeholders. 

(H) The Applicant must provide accredited traffic controllers during the Works Zone times 
to safely manage vehicular traffic around the works area 

 

Voting Members for this Item 

 

23

Item 7.



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Voting Members Support Object 

City of Sydney [Insert] [Insert] 

Transport for NSW [Insert] [Insert] 

NSW Police – Sydney City PAC [Insert] [Insert] 

Representative for the Member for Sydney [Insert] [Insert] 

 
 
 

Advice 

Advice will be updated after the meeting. 

 

Background 

Trescon Pty Ltd has requested a 10 metre long Works Zone in Slip Street, Sydney. 

The Works Zone is to facilitate construction works at 81 Sussex Street, Sydney. 

Comments 

The kerb space on the northern and southern side of Slip Street, Sydney west of Sussex 
Street is currently signposted as "No Parking" and "No Stopping". 

The Works Zone is intended to operate from 7am to 7pm Monday to Friday and 7am to 5pm 
Saturday in accordance with the Development Consent Conditions. The Works Zone will 
revert to "No Parking All Other Times" after the Works Zone hours.  

It is proposed to relocate the double barrier line in Slip Street to provide adequate road 
space and ensure vehicles can safely travel past the Works Zone. The proposal will also 
include the reallocation of parking on the southern side of Slip Street as "No Stopping". 

The proposal will result in a loss of one ticket parking space.  

The Applicant will provide traffic controllers to manage vehicular traffic around the Works 
Zone. 

Consultation 

The applicant must notify adjacent properties at least 14 days prior to the implementation of 
the Works Zone. 

24



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Financial 

All costs associated with the Works Zone will be borne by the Applicant. 

GANESH VENGADASALAM, SENIOR TRAFFIC ENGINEER 

25



not to scale

Existing

Proposal

Slip Street, Sydney
Proposed Works Zone

Source: nearmap 4 October 2021

No Stopping

Works Zone
7am-7pm Mon-Fri
7am-5pm Sat

No Parking
All Other Times

Proposed

No Parking

Remove existing 
BB linemarkings

Install new BB 
linemarkings at 
new location

2P Ticket
8am-6pm Mon-Fri
4P Ticket
6pm-10pm Mon-Fri
8am-10pm Sat-Sun & Public 
Holidays

26



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Works Zone - York Street, Sydney 

TRIM Container No.: 2022/463306 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that the Committee endorse the reallocation of the kerb space on the 
western side of York Street, Sydney, between the points 30 metres and 45 metres north of 
Druitt Street as 'Works Zone 7am-3pm Mon-Fri, 7am-5pm Sat' and 'No Stopping Other 
Times', subject to the following conditions: 

(A) The Applicant must comply with the Works Zone conditions as stipulated in Schedule 
C of this agenda. 

(B) The Applicant must obtain separate approval from the City's Tree Management Team 
prior to implementation of the Works Zone. 

(C) The Applicant is not permitted to operate any part of a crane over a public road or 
hoist/swing goods from a Works Zone across or over any part of a public road by 
means of a lift, hoist or crane unless a separate approval has been obtained from the 
City's Construction and Building Certification Services Unit as required under Section 
68 of the Local Government Act 1993 and Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993. 

(D) The Applicant must notify adjacent properties of the Works Zone at least 14 days prior 
to installation and must provide a telephone number of the supervisor responsible for 
the proposed Works Zone and include contact details in the notification letter to be 
distributed to affected stakeholders. 

 

Voting Members for this Item 

 

Voting Members Support Object 

City of Sydney [Insert] [Insert] 

Transport for NSW [Insert] [Insert] 

NSW Police – Sydney City PAC [Insert] [Insert] 

Representative for the Member for Sydney [Insert] [Insert] 

 
 
 

27

Item 8.



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Advice 

Advice will be updated after the meeting. 

 

Background 

Decode Sydney Pty Ltd has requested a 15 metre long Works Zone in York Street, Sydney. 

The Works Zone is to facilitate construction works at 139 York Street, Sydney. 

Comments 

The kerb space on the western side of York Street, Sydney between Druitt Street and 
Market Street is currently signposted as "No Stopping". 

The Works Zone is intended to operate from 7am to 3pm Monday to Friday and 7am to 5pm 
Saturday in accordance with the Development Consent Conditions. 

The street is wide enough to allow the Works Zone to be installed without affecting traffic 
flow or property access. 

The Works Zone will revert to "No Stopping Other Times" after the work zone hours.  

Consultation 

The applicant must notify adjacent properties at least 14 days prior to the implementation of 
the Works Zone. 

Financial 

All costs associated with the Works Zone will be borne by the Applicant. 

ALEXANDER SAUNDERS, SENIOR TRAFFIC ENGINEER 

28



not to scale

Existing

Proposal
York Street, Sydney 
Proposed Works Zone

Source: Nearmap Pty Ltd August 2022

“No Stopping” “Works Zone 7.00am-
3.00pm Mon-Fri, 7.00am-
5.00pm Sat / No Stopping 
Other Times“

Proposed

Druitt Street

30m

0m

45m

29



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Works Zone - Hutchinson Street, Surry Hills 

TRIM Container No.: 2022/508541 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that the Committee endorse the reallocation of the kerb space on the 
western side of Hutchinson Street, Surry Hills, between the points 24 metres and 40 metres 
north of Sandwell Street as "Works Zone 7.30am-5.30pm Mon-Fri, 7.30am-3.30pm Sat" and 
"2P 5.30pm-10pm Mon-Fri, 3.30pm-10pm Sat, 8am-10pm Sun, Permit Holders Excepted 
Area 18", subject to the following conditions: 

(A) The Applicant must comply with the Works Zone conditions as stipulated in Schedule 
C of this agenda. 

(B) The Applicant is not permitted to operate any part of a crane over a public road or 
hoist/swing goods from a Works Zone across or over any part of a public road by 
means of a lift, hoist or crane unless a separate approval has been obtained from the 
City's Construction and Building Certification Services Unit as required under Section 
68 of the Local Government Act 1993 and Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993. 

(C) The Applicant must notify adjacent properties of the Works Zone at least 14 days prior 
to installation and must provide a telephone number of the supervisor responsible for 
the proposed Works Zone and include contact details in the notification letter to be 
distributed to affected stakeholders. 

(D) The Applicant must provide TfNSW-Accredited Traffic Controllers to safely manage the 
operation of the Works Zone and maintain local vehicular access in Hutchinson Street 
at all times. If approaching traffic or vehicles exiting driveways cannot pass a vehicle in 
the Works Zone, the TfNSW-Accredited Traffic Controllers must instruct the 
construction vehicle to depart the Works Zone immediately. 

 

Voting Members for this Item 

 

Voting Members Support Object 

City of Sydney [Insert] [Insert] 

Transport for NSW [Insert] [Insert] 

NSW Police – Surry Hills PAC [Insert] [Insert] 

Representative for the Member for Sydney [Insert] [Insert] 

30

Item 9.



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

 
 
 

Advice 

Advice will be updated after the meeting. 

 

Background 

Orwell Constructions Pty. Ltd. has requested a 16 metre long Works Zone in Hutchinson 
Street, Surry Hills. 

The Works Zone is to facilitate construction works at 29-41 Hutchinson Street, Surry Hills. 

Comments 

The kerb space on the western side of Hutchinson Street, Surry Hills north of Sandwell 
Street and is currently signposted as "2P 8am-10pm, Permit Holders Excepted Area 18" and 
"No Parking". 

The Works Zone is intended to operate from 7.30am to 5.30pm Monday to Friday and 
7.30am to 3.30pm Saturday in accordance with the Development Consent Conditions. 
Outside of these hours, the Works Zone will revert to 2P Permit Parking. 

The street is wide enough to allow the Works Zone to be installed without affecting traffic 
flow or property access. 

The Works Zone will be installed across the driveway of the site. TfNSW-Accredited Traffic 
Controllers will maintain access to nearby driveways at all times.  

Consultation 

The applicant must notify adjacent properties at least 14 days prior to the implementation of 
the Works Zone. 

Financial 

All costs associated with the Works Zone will be borne by the Applicant. 

TERRY XU, ENGINEERING TRAFFIC OFFICER 

31



not to scale

Existing

Proposal

Hutchinson Street, Surry Hills
Proposed Works Zone

Source: Nearmaps

“No Stopping”

“2P 8am-10pm, Permit 
Holders Excepted Area 18”

Existing Driveway

“Works Zone 7.30am-5.30pm Mon-Fri, 
7.30am-3.30pm Sat” and “2P 5.30pm-10pm 
Mon-Fri, 3.30pm-10pm Sat, 8am-10pm Sun, 
Permit Holders Excepted Area 18”

Proposed

32



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Works Zone - Sparkes Street, Camperdown 

TRIM Container No.: 2022/495078 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that the Committee endorse the following reallocation of the kerb space:  

(A) On the northern side of Sparkes Street, Camperdown, between the points 11.2 metres 
and 21.2 metres east of Larkin Street, Camperdown as "Works Zone 7.30am-5.30pm 
Mon-Fri 7.30am-3.30pm Sat" and "No Stopping All Other Times".  

(B) On the southern side of Sparkes Street, Camperdown, between the points 0 metres 
and 24 metres east of Larkin Street, Camperdown as "No Stopping 7.30am-5.30pm 
Mon-Fri 7.30am-3.30pm Sat" and "1P 5.30pm-10pm Mon-Fri 3.30pm-10pm Sat 8am-
10pm Sun & Public Holidays Permit Holders Excepted Area G". 

Subject to the following conditions: 

(C) The Applicant must comply with the Works Zone conditions as stipulated in Schedule 
C of this agenda. 

(D) The Applicant is not permitted to operate any part of a crane over a public road or 
hoist/swing goods from a Works Zone across or over any part of a public road by 
means of a lift, hoist or crane unless a separate approval has been obtained from the 
City's Construction and Building Certification Services Unit as required under Section 
68 of the Local Government Act 1993 and Section 138 of the Roads Act 1993. 

(E) The Applicant must notify adjacent properties of the Works Zone at least 14 days prior 
to installation and must provide a telephone number of the supervisor responsible for 
the proposed Works Zone and include contact details in the notification letter to be 
distributed to affected stakeholders. 

(F) The installation of the works zone is subject to the City's approval of the Construction 
Traffic Management Plan (CTMP).  

 

Voting Members for this Item 

 

Voting Members Support Object 

City of Sydney [Insert] [Insert] 

Transport for NSW [Insert] [Insert] 

33

Item 10.



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

NSW Police – Leichhardt PAC [Insert] [Insert] 

Representative for the Member for Balmain [Insert] [Insert] 

 
 
 

Advice 

Advice will be updated after the meeting. 

 

Background 

Tartarus Group Pty Ltd has requested a 10 metre long Works Zone in Sparkes Street, 
Camperdown. 

The Works Zone is to facilitate construction works at 26 Sparkes Street, Camperdown. 

Comments 

The kerb space on the northern side of Sparkes Street between Larkin and Sparkes Streets 
where the Works Zone is proposed is currently signposted as No Stopping. 

The Works Zone is intended to operate from 7.30am-5.30pm Monday to Friday and 7.30am 
to 3.30pm Saturday in accordance with the Development Consent Conditions. The works 
zone will revert to "No Stopping All Other Times" after the works zone hours. 

The kerb space opposite the proposed works zone is signposted as "1P 8am-10pm Permit 
Holders Excepted Area G". Sparkes Street is not wide enough to allow the works zone to be 
installed without affecting traffic flows or property access. To ensure vehicles can safely 
travel along Sparkes Street, four parking spaces opposite the works zone will be reallocated 
to "No Stopping" during the works zone hours and revert to permit parking after the work 
zone hours. 

Consultation 

The applicant must notify adjacent properties at least 14 days prior to the implementation of 
the Works Zone. 

Financial 

All costs associated with the Works Zone will be borne by the Applicant. 

GANESH VENGADASALAM, SENIOR TRAFFIC ENGINEER 

34



no
t t

o 
sc

al
e

W
or

ks
 Z

on
e

7.
30

am
-5

.3
0p

m
M

on
-F

ri
7.

30
am

-3
.3

0p
m

Sa
t

N
o 

St
op

pi
ng

 A
ll 

O
th

er
 T

im
es

N
o 

St
op

pi
ng

Ex
is

tin
g

Pr
op

os
al

Sp
ar

ke
s 

St
re

et
, C

am
pe

rd
ow

n
Pr

op
os

ed
 W

or
ks

 Z
on

e

So
ur

ce
: n

ea
rm

ap
 3

 A
pr

il 
20

22

Pr
op

os
ed

N
o 

Pa
rk

in
g

1P 8a
m

-1
0p

m
Pe

rm
it 

H
ol

de
rs

 E
xc

ep
te

d
Ar

ea
G

U
nr

es
tri

ct
ed

 p
ar

ki
ng

N
o 

St
op

pi
ng

7.
30

am
-5

.3
0p

m
M

on
-F

ri
7.

30
am

-3
.3

0p
m

Sa
t

1P 5.
30

pm
-1

0p
m

M
on

-F
ri

3.
30

pm
-1

0p
m

 S
at

8a
m

-1
0p

m
 S

un
 &

 P
ub

lic
 H

ol
id

ay
s

Pe
rm

it
H

ol
de

rs
Ex

ce
pt

ed
Ar

ea
 G

35



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Parking - No Parking - Wentworth Avenue, Sydney 

TRIM Container No.: 2022/416513 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that the Committee endorse the reallocation of parking on the western 
side of Wentworth Avenue, Sydney between the points 39.4 metres and 45.4 metres south 
of Goulburn Street as "No Parking". 

 

Voting Members for this Item 

 

Voting Members Support Object 

City of Sydney [Insert] [Insert] 

Transport for NSW [Insert] [Insert] 

NSW Police – Surry Hills PAC [Insert] [Insert] 

Representative for the Member for Sydney [Insert] [Insert] 

 
 
 

Advice 

Advice will be updated after the meeting. 

 

Background 

Ace Hotel located at 53 Wentworth Avenue, Sydney has requested consideration of pick up 
and drop off spaces in Wentworth Avenue outside the hotel frontage for their hotel guests. 

Comments 

Parking in Wentworth Avenue, where the changes are proposed, is currently signposted as 
"No Stopping". 

36

Item 11.



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

On-site inspection shows there is a need to provide "No Parking" restriction to allow pick up 
and drop off for hotel guests. The current "No Stopping" restriction is 45.4 metres long and 
there is an opportunity to reallocate a section of the "No Stopping" to "No Parking" without 
impacting on traffic flows. 

Consultation 

The City consulted local residents and businesses in the area. There were 203 letters sent 
out with no responses received for the proposal. 

The proposal was consulted with TfNSW, who raised no objections to the parking change. 

Financial 

Funds are available in the current budget. 

ALEXANDER SAUNDERS, SENIOR TRAFFIC ENGINEER 

37



not to scale

ExistingExisting

Proposal
Wentworth Avenue, Sydney
Proposed parking changes

Nearmap Pty Ltd

“No Stopping”

“No Parking”

“Loading Zone Ticket 6am-
6pm Mon-Fri, 6am-10am 
Sat /  4P Ticket 6pm-10pm 
Mon-Fri, 10am-10pm Sat, 
8am-10pm Sun & Public 
Holidays”

“No Parking Coaches 
Excepted 15 minute limit”

“No Stopping Aust. Post 
Vehicles Excepted”

“Works Zone 7am-6pm 
Mon-Fri, 7am-5pm Sat” and 
“No Stopping other times”

Unrestricted Parking

“No Parking”
Proposed

0m

63.4m

80.0m

90.0m

106.2m

45.4m

39.4m

ACE Hotel

38



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Parking - No Parking - Thurlow Lane, Redfern 

TRIM Container No.: 2022/449674 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that the Committee endorse the allocation of parking on the western side 
of Thurlow Lane, Redfern, between the points 7.5 metres and 26 metres (3 car spaces) 
north of Thurlow Street as "No Parking". 

 

Voting Members for this Item 

 

Voting Members Support Object 

City of Sydney [Insert] [Insert] 

Transport for NSW [Insert] [Insert] 

NSW Police – South Sydney PAC [Insert] [Insert] 

Representative for the Member for Newtown [Insert] [Insert] 

 
 
 

Advice 

Advice will be updated after the meeting. 

 

Background 

Residents of Thurlow Street, Redfern has requested consideration of "No Parking" in 
Thurlow Lane to improve access to their rear-lane garage. 

Comments 

The kerb space on the western side of Thurlow Lane, Redfern north of Thurlow Street, 
where the changes are proposed, is currently unrestricted for parking. 

39

Item 12.



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Thurlow Lane is approximately 4.7 metres wide and provides rear-lane property access to 
houses fronting South Dowling Street.  

The NSW Road Rules 2014 prohibit drivers from parking at any time across a driveway, or in 
any other way which blocks access to a driveway. In narrow streets like Thurlow Lane, car 
parking opposite driveways obstruct or prevent vehicles from entering or exiting these 
driveways. Section 6 of the Roads Act 1993 gives adjoining land owners a right of vehicles 
access to the public road. 

On-site inspection shows there is a need to provide a 'No Parking' restriction to maintain 
rear-lane property access. 

Consultation 

The City consulted local residents and businesses in the area. There were 57 letters sent out 
with no responses supporting or opposing the proposal. 

Financial 

Funds are available in the current budget. 

VICKI CALLEJA, ENGINEERING TRAFFIC OFFICER 

40



not to scale

Existing

Proposal

Thurlow Lane, Redfern
Proposed parking changes

Source: Nearmaps

“No Stopping”

Unrestricted Parking

Existing Driveway

“No Parking”
Proposed

41



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Parking - No Stopping - Little Dowling Street, Paddington 

TRIM Container No.: 2022/418821 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that the Committee endorse the reallocation of parking on the eastern 
side of Little Dowling Street, Paddington between the points 1 metres and 6.7 metres (1 car 
space) south of Little Napier Street as "No Stopping". 

 

Voting Members for this Item 

 

Voting Members Support Object 

City of Sydney [Insert] [Insert] 

Transport for NSW [Insert] [Insert] 

NSW Police – Surry Hills PAC [Insert] [Insert] 

Representative for the Member for Sydney [Insert] [Insert] 

 
 
 

Advice 

Advice will be updated after the meeting. 

 

Background 

Members of the Paddington-Darlinghurst Community Working Group have requested that 
the City improve safety and residential amenity by installing a pedestrian access ramp on the 
eastern side of Little Dowling Street at the intersection with Little Napier Street. 

42

Item 13.



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Comments 

The kerb space on the eastern side of Little Dowling Street between Napier Street and Little 
Napier Street, where the changes are proposed, is currently signposted as "1P 8am-2am 
Permit Holders Excepted Area 15". 

Little Napier Street, between Little Dowling Street and Selwyn Street, is a closed street with 
pedestrian only access. The proposed access ramp will improve mobility access to Little 
Napier Street via South Dowling Street. 

The NSW Road Rules 2014 prohibit drivers from obstructing access to and from a footpath 
with access ramps and driveways. To ensure access to the ramp is maintained, the existing 
No Stopping sign is required to be shifted 5.7m to the north to cover the ramp. This will result 
in a loss of one parking space. 

Consultation 

The City consulted local residents and businesses in the area. There were 78 letters sent out 
with nil responses supporting the proposal and one response opposing the proposal. 

The response against the proposal mentioned the following: 

 I have a newborn baby and need the amenity of close parking which is provided by 
those spaces. The removal of the proposed space (being 25% of the available parking 
spaces) would create a significant inconvenience. 

 The ramp is unnecessary because there are kerb ramps on Napier Street, Selwyn 
Street and Albion Lane. For a precinct that comprises only a few streets, adding a 
further ramp is unnecessary. 

Financial 

Appropriate funding for the proposal will be secured once greater certainty on the 
construction timeline is reached. 

DIPEN NANDODWALA, SENIOR ENGINEER - CIVIL DESIGN 

43



0.0 m

10.0 m

11.0 m

1.0 m

6.7 m

A
C

C
E

S
S

 R
A

M
P

, L
IT

TL
E

 D
O

W
LI

N
G

 S
TR

E
E

T,
 P

A
D

D
IN

G
TO

N
N

O
T 

TO
 S

C
A

LE

LI
TT

LE
 D

O
W

LI
N

G
 S

TR
E

E
T

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

G
A

R
D

E
N

B
E

D

LITTLE NAPIER
STREET

R
E

LO
C

A
TE

 "1
P

" &
 "N

O
 S

TO
P

P
IN

G
 S

IG
N

"
≈

5.
7m

 N
O

R
TH

 - 
LO

S
S

 O
F 

1 
P

A
R

K
IN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

R
E

M
O

V
E

 E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 P
O

S
T

A
N

D
 "1

P
" S

IG
N

N
E

W
 C

O
N

C
R

E
TE

 A
C

C
E

S
S

 R
A

M
P

R
E

LO
C

A
TE

 E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 B
O

LL
A

R
D

S
TO

 P
R

E
V

E
N

T 
V

E
H

IC
U

LA
R

A
C

C
E

S
S

 W
H

IL
E

 N
O

T 
IM

P
E

D
IN

G
P

E
D

E
S

TR
IA

N
 A

C
C

E
S

S

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 - 
N

O
 S

TO
P

P
IN

G

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 - 
N

O
 S

TO
P

P
IN

G

LE
G

E
N

D
:

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 P
A

R
K

IN
G

 - 
1P

 8
:0

0 
A

M
 - 

2:
00

 A
M

P
E

R
M

IT
 H

O
LD

E
R

S
 E

X
C

E
P

TE
D

 A
R

E
A

 1
5

44



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Parking - No Stopping - Booth Street, Camperdown 

TRIM Container No.: 2022/518832 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that the Committee endorse the reallocation of parking on the eastern 
side of Booth Street, Camperdown between the points 29.6 metres to 41.7 metres (two car 
spaces) north of Alexandra Drive as "No Stopping". 

 

Voting Members for this Item 

 

Voting Members Support Object 

City of Sydney [Insert] [Insert] 

Transport for NSW [Insert] [Insert] 

NSW Police – Leichhardt PAC [Insert] [Insert] 

Representative for the Member for Balmain [Insert] [Insert] 

 
 
 

Advice 

Advice will be updated after the meeting. 

 

Background 

The City has received requests from residents for consideration to improve the sight lines at 
the intersection of Booth Street and Alexandra Drive, Camperdown. Residents have 
highlighted that parked vehicles north of the intersection are restricting the sight lines leading 
to conflicts with oncoming vehicles on Booth Street. 

45

Item 14.



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Comments 

The kerb space on the eastern side of Booth Street, Camperdown north of Alexandra Drive, 
where the parking changes are proposed is currently unrestricted for parking.  

The "No Stopping" distance at the intersection is currently less than the Transport for NSW 
(TfNSW) 10 metres Statutory "No Stopping" distance at unsignalised intersections.  

On-site inspection shows that there is a need to increase the "No Stopping" distance to 12.1 
metres to improve the sight distance and enhance road safety at the intersection.  

The proposal also involves relocating the Give Way line on Alexandra Drive towards Booth 
Street. 

The proposal will result in the loss of two unrestricted parking spaces on eastern side of 
Booth Street, north of Alexandra Drive. 

Consultation 

The City consulted local residents and businesses in the area. There were 248 letters sent 
out with 2 responses supporting the proposal and no responses opposing the proposal. 

One response raised concerns about the interaction of people walking and cycling on the 
proposed shared path on Alexandra Drive. The City had assessed the issue in 2018 on the 
basis that southbound cyclists will be riding uphill in the separated cycleway on Booth Street 
and as a result will be travelling slowly when transitioning to the shared path. Signage and 
pavement markings will be installed at this location to increase awareness of the shared 
environment and to reinforce pedestrian priority 

The other response requested consideration to lower the speed limit along Booth Street to 
40 km/h. The City supports low speed limits and are working with TfNSW to reduce the 
speed limit in the precinct. 

Financial 

Funds are available in the current budget. 

JIMMY SOO, SENIOR DESIGNER - CYCLING 

46



4
0

B
O

O
TH

   
S

TR
E

E
T

ALEXANDRA   DRIVE

Johnstons Creek Canal

Johnstons Creek Canal

B
ad

u 
P

ar
k

ONLY

SHARED PATH

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 F
O

O
TP

A
TH

 W
ID

E
N

IN
G

P
R

E
V

IO
U

S
LY

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

S
H

A
R

E
D

 P
A

TH

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 G
A

R
D

E
N

 B
E

D

ONLY

1
2

3
4

5

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 C
Y

C
LE

W
A

Y

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 N
A

TU
R

E
 S

TR
IP

P
R

E
V

IO
U

S
LY

 A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

B
IC

Y
C

LE
 P

A
TH

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 G
A

R
D

E
N

 B
E

D

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 F
O

O
TP

A
TH

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 S
H

A
R

E
D

 P
A

TH

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 G
IV

E
W

A
Y

 L
IN

E
TO

 B
E

 R
E

M
O

V
E

D

PT 0.0

PT 20.0

PT 40.0

PT 43.2

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 U
N

R
E

S
TR

IC
TE

D
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
, A

P
P

R
O

V
E

D
 B

Y
 L

P
C

TC
C

 1
5 

N
O

V
 2

01
8

R
E

V
IS

E
D

 U
N

R
E

S
TR

IC
TE

D
 P

A
R

K
IN

G
 P

R
O

P
O

S
A

L 
(A

M
E

N
D

E
D

 T
O

 F
A

C
IL

IT
A

TE
 S

IG
H

T 
D

IS
TA

N
C

E
)

LE
G

E
N

D
:

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 U
N

R
E

S
TR

IC
TE

D
 P

A
R

K
IN

G

PT 29.6

PT 41.7

STOPPING
NO

R
E

LO
C

A
TE

 N
O

 S
TO

P
P

IN
G

S
IG

N
 F

R
O

M
 P

T 
41

.7
 T

O
 P

T 
29

.6

S
yd

ne
y2

03
0/

G
re

en
/G

lo
ba

l/C
on

ne
ct

ed

B
o

o
th

 S
tr

ee
t,

 A
nn

an
d

al
e

W
al

ki
ng

 a
nd

 c
yc

lin
g 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 - 
P

ro
po

se
d 

P
ar

ki
ng

 C
ha

ng
e

47



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Parking - No Stopping - Navins Lane, Zetland 

TRIM Container No.: 2022/490239 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that the Committee endorse the allocation of parking on the northern side 
of Navins Lane, Zetland between the points 10 metres and 25.5 metres (two car spaces) 
east of Portman Street as "No Stopping". 

 

Voting Members for this Item 

 

Voting Members Support Object 

City of Sydney [Insert] [Insert] 

Transport for NSW [Insert] [Insert] 

NSW Police – South Sydney PAC [Insert] [Insert] 

Representative for the Member for Heffron [Insert] [Insert] 

 
 
 

Advice 

Advice will be updated after the meeting. 

 

Background 

The development of 944-954 Bourke Street, Zetland requires that the Applicant submits a 
signage plan for kerbside parking arrangements along the site's frontage in Portman Street 
and Navins Lane to be referred to the Local Pedestrians, Cycling and Traffic Calming 
Committee. 

48

Item 15.



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Comments 

The City has approved the redevelopment of 944-954 Bourke Street, Zetland. 

The kerb space on the northern side of Navins Lane, east of Portman Street, where the 
changes are proposed, is currently unrestricted for parking. However, the majority of Navins 
Lane is currently signposted as "No Stopping" to maintain access. 

It is proposed to install parking restrictions to reflect the change in adjacent land use. As 
such, it is proposed to extend the existing "No Stopping" the cover the kerb space along the 
frontage of the redevelopment site in Navins Lane.  

The extended "No Stopping" would allow uninterrupted access to the building using the 
proposed driveway. 

Consultation 

The Applicant must notify adjacent properties at least seven days prior to the 
implementation. 

Financial 

All costs associated with the parking changes will be borne by the applicant. 

HASSAN CHOUDHRY, SENIOR TRAFFIC ENGINEER 

49



not to scale

Existing

Proposal

Bourke Street, Zetland
Proposed parking changes

Source: Nearmaps

“No Stopping”

Unrestricted Parking

“No Stopping”

Proposed Driveway

Proposed

50



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Parking - Timed Parking - Forest Street, Forest Lodge 

TRIM Container No.: 2022/464555 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that the Committee endorse the reallocation of parking on the western 
side of Forest Street, Forest Lodge between the points 49.3 metres and 56 metres (one car 
space) south of St Johns Road as "1P 8am-10pm, Mon-Sat Permit Holders Excepted Area 
G". 

 

Voting Members for this Item 

 

Voting Members Support Object 

City of Sydney [Insert] [Insert] 

Transport for NSW [Insert] [Insert] 

NSW Police – Leichhardt PAC [Insert] [Insert] 

Representative for the Member for Balmain [Insert] [Insert] 

 
 
 

Advice 

Advice will be updated after the meeting. 

 

Background 

A resident of Forest Street has requested for the removal of the mobility parking space in 
Forest Street as it is no longer required. 

51

Item 16.



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Comments 

The kerb space on the western side of Forest Street, Forest Lodge, south of St Johns Road, 
where the changes are proposed, is currently signposted as "Mobility Parking Only". 

The resident who requested the mobility parking space has advised the City they have 
moved and no longer require the mobility parking space. 

The kerb side restrictions will be changed to "1P 8am-10pm, Mon-Sat Permit Holders 
Excepted Area G" in line with adjacent kerb space restrictions. 

Consultation 

The City consulted local residents and businesses in the area. There were 81 letters sent out 
with no responses supporting or opposing the proposal. 

Financial 

Funds are available in the current budget. 

TERRY XU, ENGINEERING TRAFFIC OFFICER 

52



not to scale

Existing

Proposal

Forest Street, Forest Lodge
Proposed parking changes

Source: Nearmaps

“Mobility Parking Only”

“1P 8am-10pm Mon-Sat Permit 
Holders Excepted Area G”

“1P 8am-10pm Mon-Sat Permit 
Holders Excepted Area G”

Proposed

53



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Parking - Timed Parking - Bourke Street, Waterloo 

TRIM Container No.: 2022/495734 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that the Committee endorse the extension of operating hours on the 
existing "2P 10am-5pm Mon-Fri, 8.30am-12.30pm Sat" on the western side of Bourke Street, 
Waterloo between the points 154.2 metres and 200.2 metres (eight car spaces) north of 
McEvoy Street to "2P 10am-10pm Mon-Fri, 8am-10pm Sat". 

 

Voting Members for this Item 

 

Voting Members Support Object 

City of Sydney [Insert] [Insert] 

Transport for NSW [Insert] [Insert] 

NSW Police – South Sydney PAC [Insert] [Insert] 

Representative for the Member for Heffron [Insert] [Insert] 

 
 
 

Advice 

Advice will be updated after the meeting. 

 

Background 

The Development Consent for 895-901 Bourke Street, Waterloo (D/2015/194) requires the 
Applicant to submit a signage plan for kerbside parking arrangement for the site's frontage 
along Bourke Street to be referred to the Local Pedestrian Cycling and Traffic Calming 
Committee. 

54

Item 17.



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Comments 

The City has approved the development application for 895-901 Bourke Street, Waterloo 
(D/2015/194). 

The kerb space on the western side of Bourke Street, north of McEvoy Street, where the 
changes are proposed, is currently signposted as "2P 10am-5pm Mon-Fri" and " 8.30am-
12.30pm Sat".  

It is proposed to update the parking restrictions to "2P 10am-10pm Mon-Fri, 8am-10pm Sat" 
along the frontage of the development site in Bourke Street. These changes will reflect the 
change in adjacent land use, will increase parking turnover and will improve access to on-
street parking for visitors to the area. 

Consultation 

The Applicant must notify the adjacent properties at least 14 days prior to the 
implementation of the changes, 

Financial 

All costs associated with the parking changes will be borne by the applicant. 

NAZAR BADSHAH, SENIOR TRAFFIC ENGINEER 

55



56



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Parking - 2P Parking - Newton Street, Alexandria 

TRIM Container No.: 2022/430117 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that the Committee endorse the reallocation of parking on the western 
side of Newton Street, Alexandria between the points 68.2 metres and 76 metres (1 car 
space) north of Copeland Street as: “2P 8am-6pm Mon-Fri Permit Holders Excepted Area 
36”. 

 

Voting Members for this Item 

 

Voting Members Support Object 

City of Sydney [Insert] [Insert] 

Transport for NSW [Insert] [Insert] 

NSW Police – South Sydney PAC [Insert] [Insert] 

Representative for the Member for Newtown [Insert] [Insert] 

 
 
 

Advice 

Advice will be updated after the meeting. 

 

Background 

A resident of Newton Street, Alexandria has requested the removal of the "Mobility Parking 
Only" space in the street as it is no longer needed. 

57

Item 18.



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Comments 

The kerb space on the western side of Newton Street, Alexandria between Copeland and 
Renwick Streets, where the changes are proposed, is currently signposted as 2P and a 
"Mobility Parking Only" space. 

The resident that originally requested the mobility parking space has advised the City that 
they no longer need the mobility parking space in front of their home. 

On-site inspection shows there is a need to reallocate the existing "Mobility Parking Only" to 
“2P 8am-6pm Mon-Fri Permit Holders Excepted Area 36” to match the adjacent kerb space 
conditions. 

Consultation 

The City consulted local residents and businesses in the area. There were 182 letters sent 
out with no responses supporting or opposing the proposal. 

Financial 

Funds are available in the current budget. 

VICKI CALLEJA, ENGINEERING TRAFFIC OFFICER 

58



not to scale

Existing

Proposal
Newton Street, Alexandria
Proposed parking changes

Source: Nearmap

“2P 8am-6pm MON-FRI
PERMIT HOLDERS EXCEPTED AREA 36”

“Mobility Parking”

“No Stopping”

Proposed
“2P 8am-6pm MON-FRI
PERMIT HOLDERS EXCEPTED AREA 36”

76m

68.2m

59



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Parking - P5mins - Dowling Street, Woolloomooloo 

TRIM Container No.: 2022/365320 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that the Committee endorse the following reallocation of parking: 

(A) On the western side of Dowling Street, Woolloomooloo south of Wilson Street, 
between the points 31.5 metres and 43.5 metres as "P5mins 7.30am - 9.30am, 
2.30pm - 3.30pm School Days";  

(B) On the eastern side of Dowling Street, Woolloomooloo north of Pring Street, between 
the points 10 metres and 16 metres as "1P 8am-6pm Mon-Fri Permit Holders 
Excepted Area 28"; and 

(C) On the eastern side of Dowling Street, Woolloomooloo north of Pring Street, between 
the points 21 metres and 27 metres as "1P 8am-6pm Mon-Fri Permit Holders 
Excepted Area 28". 

 

 

Voting Members for this Item 

 

Voting Members Support Object 

City of Sydney [Insert] [Insert] 

Transport for NSW [Insert] [Insert] 

NSW Police – Kings Cross PAC [Insert] [Insert] 

Representative for the Member for Sydney [Insert] [Insert] 

 
 
 

Advice 

Advice will be updated after the meeting. 

 

60

Item 19.



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Background 

The Plunkett Street Public School Parents and Carers Association has requested 
consideration for 5 minute parking in Dowling Street to improve pick up and drop off 
opportunities for the school.. 

Comments 

The kerb spaces on the western side of Dowling Street, Woolloomooloo between Wilson and 
Pring Streets,  where the parking changes are proposed is currently signposted as "1P 8am-
6pm Mon-Fri Permit Holders Excepted Area 28".  

The kerb space on the eastern side of Dowling Street north of Pring Street where the parking 
changes are proposed currently is unrestricted for parking. 

On-site inspection shows there is a need to provide 5 minute parking spaces in Dowling 
Street to allow for school students to be safely picked up and dropped off. These spaces will 
be unrestricted outside school pick up and drop off times. To reduce the impact on parking 
access for residents, visitors, and customers of local businesses, the 1P permit parking on 
the western side of Dowling Street will be relocated to the eastern side.  

Consultation 

The City consulted local residents and businesses in the area. There were 255 letters sent 
out with three responses opposing the proposal. 

The responses opposing the proposal expressed concerns regarding loss of all day 
unrestricted parking spaces. 

Financial 

Funds are available in the current budget. 

ALEXANDER SAUNDERS, SENIOR TRAFFIC ENGINEER 

61



Existing

Proposal

Dowling Street, Woolloomooloo
Proposed parking changes

Proposed

Unrestricted

not to scale

“P5 min 7.30am-9.30am 
2.30pm-3.30pm
School Days”

“1P 8am-6pm Mon-Fri
Permit Holders Excepted 
Area 28”

Chainage 0m at Pring Street

Chainage 0m at Wilson Street

“No Stopping"

Driveway

“1P 8am-6pm Mon-Fri
Permit Holders Excepted Area 28”

Existing

“No Parking”

62



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Traffic Treatment - Raised Crossing, No Stopping, Timed Parking, Bus Zone, 
Taxi Zone and Car Share - Baptist and Marriott Streets, Redfern 

TRIM Container No.: 2022/091075 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that the Committee endorse the installation of the following changes in 
Redfern: 

(A) The installation of a Raised Crossing in Marriott Street, between the points 30.3 
metres and 37.8 metres, south of Cleveland Street. 

(B) The reallocation of kerbside parking restrictions in Marriott Street, Redfern as follows; 

 Western side, between the points 23.1 metres and 57.8 metres (six car spaces) 
south of Cleveland Street as, "No Stopping"; 

 Eastern side, between the points 7.6 metres and 56.6 metres (seven car spaces) 
south of Cleveland Street as, "No Stopping"; 

 Eastern side, between the points 56.6 metres and 129.1 metres (14 car spaces) 
south of Cleveland Street as, "1P 8am-10pm Mon-Sat, Permit Holders Excepted 
Area 41”". 

(C) The reallocation of kerbside parking restrictions in Baptist Street, Redfern as follows; 

 Western side, between the points 84.9 metres and 132 metres (eight car spaces) 
south of Cleveland Street as, "Bus Zone"; 

 Western side, between the points 132 metres and 164.6 metres (five car spaces) 
south of Cleveland Street as, "No Stopping"; 

 Western side, between the points 164.6 metres and 170.4 metres (one car 
spaces) south of Cleveland Street as, "No Parking Authorised Car Share 
Vehicles Excepted Bay 170". 

 

Voting Members for this Item 

 

Voting Members Support Object 

City of Sydney [Insert] [Insert] 

Transport for NSW [Insert] [Insert] 

63

Item 20.



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

NSW Police – South Sydney PAC [Insert] [Insert] 

Representative for the Member for Newtown [Insert] [Insert] 

 
 
 

Advice 

Advice will be updated after the meeting. 

 

Background 

The Development Consent for 2-38 Baptist Street, Redfern requires the Applicant to provide 
traffic calming measures and submit a signage plan for kerbside parking and line marking 
arrangements in Baptist and Marriott Streets that is to be referred to the Local Pedestrian, 
Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee for consideration and endorsement. 

Comments 

The former Surry Hills Shopping Village has been approved for redevelopment. 

The proposal includes installation of a Raised Crossing with kerb side islands in Marriott 
Street, south of Cleveland Street. This will reduce vehicle speeds, improve pedestrian safety 
and accessibility, and improve local amenity for the nearby residents into the new 
development.  

To maintain adequate sightline for drivers approaching the Raised Crossing in Marriott 
Street, it is proposed to install "No Stopping" restrictions on either side of the proposed 
crossing. 

During the construction phase, the developer requested the City to relocate the Car Share in 
Marriott Street and replace with Works Zone to facilitate construction activities.  

The Car Share was relocated to northern side of Cooper Street, west of Marriott Street. 
However, the Car Share operator has now advised the City not to relocate the Car Share 
back to its original location in Marriott Street. Therefore, the Car Share in Marriott Street will 
be replaced with "No Stopping" as part of the new marked crossing. 

It is proposed to install "1P 8am-10pm Mon-Sat, Permit Holders Excepted Area 41" along 
the frontage of the development site. This would reflect the change in the adjacent land use. 
The one-hour parking would limit any vehicle to one hour of parking and increase parking 
turnover and space availability for resident in the area, where the signs are installed.  This 
would also match the existing restrictions on the western side of the street. 

It is also proposed to extend and relocate the existing "Bus Zone", "No Stopping" and Car 
Share on western side of Baptist Street to accommodate new entry and exit driveways and 
to reflect the change in the adjacent land use.  

64



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Consultation 

The Applicant must notify adjacent properties at least 14 days prior to the implementation of 
the changes. 

Financial 

All costs associated with the proposal will be borne by the Applicant. 

HASSAN CHOUDHRY, SENIOR TRAFFIC ENGINEER 

65



not to scale

Existing

Proposal

Baptist and Marriott Streets, Redfern
Proposed parking changes

Source: Nearmaps

“No Stopping”

Unrestricted Parking

1P 8am-10pm Mon-Sat, Permit 
Holders Excepted Area 41”

“No Parking Authorised Car 
Share Vehicles Excepted Zone 
GG“

“No Stopping”

“1P 8am-10pm Mon-Sat, Permit 
Holders Excepted Area 41”

“Taxi Zone”

“Bus Zone”

Raised Pedestrian Crossing

Proposed

“ “Bus Zone”

“Taxi Zone

66



not to scale

Proposal

Baptist and Marriott Streets, Redfern
Proposed parking changes

Source: Nearmaps

Existing
“No Stopping”

“1P 8am-10pm Mon-Sat, 
Permit Holders Excepted Area 
41”

“No Parking Authorised Car 
Share Vehicles Excepted 
Zone GG”

“No Stopping”

“No Parking Authorised Vehicles 
Excepted Bay 170”

“Bus Zone”

Proposed

“Bus Zone”

67



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Traffic Treatment - Streetscape Improvements - Intersection of Wellington 
Street and Cope Street, Waterloo 

TRIM Container No.: 2020/373352 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that the Committee endorse the removal of the existing roundabout at the 
intersection of Wellington Street and Cope Street, Waterloo, and the installation of a Stop 
control on Cope Street at the northern and southern approaches to Wellington Street, in lieu 
of the roundabout. 

It is also recommended that the Committee endorse the installation of the proposed traffic 
treatments in Wellington Street and Cope Street, Waterloo. 

Following are the traffic treatments recommended for installation in Wellington Street; 

(A) A 1.5 metre wide bicycle lane on the northern side of the street between Botany Road 
and a point 23.5 metres east of Cope Street; 

(B) A 0.6 metre wide painted traffic island between the bicycle lane and the traffic lane on 
the northern side of the street between the approximate points 13.9 metres and 25.5 
metres east of Cope Street; 

(C) A 1.5 metre wide bicycle lane on the southern side of the street between Botany Road 
and 56 metres east of Cope Street; 

(D) A 2.8 metre wide median separator island on the southern side of the street between 
the bicycle lane and the traffic lane between the approximate points 14.9 metres and 
31.2 metres east of Cope Street;   

(E) The reallocation of bus zone on northern side of the street between the points 12 
metres and 37.1 metres east of Cope Street, as "No Stopping " yellow line marking"; 

(F) The reallocation of parking on the northern side of the street between the points 37.1 
metres and 52.1 metres east of Cope Street, as "Bus Zone"; 

(G) The reallocation of parking on southern side of the street between the points 4.1 
metres and 21.5 metres east of Cope Street, as "No Stopping " yellow line marking; 

(H) The reallocation of parking on southern side of the street between the points 36.5 
metres and 45.2 metres east of Cope Street, as "No Stopping " yellow line marking; 

(I) Installation of a raised pedestrian crossing across the street, just east of Cope Street; 

(J) A R2-6(L) R9 -225 "No Left Turn Vehicles Over 6 m Excepted" sign on northern side of 
the street facing west at point 9.2 metres west of Cope Street; 

68

Item 21.



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

(K) A 0.6 metres wide median separator island between the bicycle lane and the traffic 
lane on northern side of street between points 9.2 metres and 49.2 west of Cope 
Street; 

(L) A 1.8 metre wide traffic island on southern side of the street between the points 0 
metres and 2.7 metres west of Cope Street; 

(M) A 2 metre wide traffic island on southern side of the street between the points 4.7 
metres and 19.3 metres west of Cope Street;  

(N) A 1 metre wide median separator island between the bicycle lane and the traffic lane 
on southern side of the street between points 19.3 metres and 40.5 west of Cope 
Street; 

(O) The allocation of parking on the northern side of the street between the points 9.2 
metres and 61.7 metres, west of Cope Street, as "No Stopping" yellow line marking; 

(P) The reallocation of parking on the southern side of the street between the points 11.9 
metres and 19.7 metres west of Cope Street, as "No Stopping " yellow line marking; 

(Q) The reallocation of parking on southern side of the street between the points 27.9 
metres and 38.2 metres west of Cope Street, as "Loading Zone 8.30am-6pm Mon-Fri, 
8.30am-12.30pm Sat "; and 

(R) The reallocation of parking on the southern side of the street between the points 38.2 
metres and 45 metres west of Cope Street, as "No Stopping " yellow line marking 

Following are the traffic treatments recommended for installations in Cope Street; 

(A) Installation of a raised pedestrian crossing across the street, just north of Wellington 
Street; 

(B) A R2-6(L) R9 -225 "No Left Turn Vehicles Over 6 m Excepted" sign on western side of 
the street facing south at point 1.33 metres south of Wellington Street; 

(C) A 2.25 metre wide raingarden on eastern side of the street between Wellington Street 
and a point 5.9 metre; 

(D) A 2.25 metre wide rain-garden on eastern side of the street between the points 7.9 
metres and 13.7 metres south of Wellington Street; 

(E) The reallocation of parking on eastern side of the street between the points 13.7 
metres and 30.1 metres south of Wellington Street, as "No Stopping " yellow 
linemarking; 

(F) The reallocation of parking on western side of the street between the points 14.27 
metres and 30.1 metres south of Wellington Street, as "No Stopping " yellow 
linemarking; 

(G) A 2.30 metre wide raingarden on western side of the street between Wellington Street 
and a point 5.35 metres, and between the points 10.57 metres and 14.27 metres. 

 

 

 

69



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Voting Members for this Item 

 

Voting Members Support Object 

City of Sydney [Insert] [Insert] 

Transport for NSW [Insert] [Insert] 

NSW Police – South Sydney PAC [Insert] [Insert] 

Representative for the Member for Heffron [Insert] [Insert] 

 
 
 

Advice 

Advice will be updated after the meeting. 

 

Background 

Sydney Metro is constructing the Sydney Metro line, from Bankstown to Sydney CBD and 
this includes an underground station in Waterloo. The station is bound by Botany Road, 
Raglan, Cope and Wellington Streets and will provide access to high speed rail, for residents 
of Waterloo and reduce demand on nearby Redfern and Green Square train stations. 

As part of the new station, streetscape improvements are proposed on Raglan, Cope and 
Wellington Streets to accommodate the increased pedestrian activity resulting from the 
change in land use. These changes will complement the NSW Government proposals for the 
redevelopment of existing Department of Housing properties within Waterloo, on the eastern 
side of Cope Street, opposite the new train station. 

A report on Traffic Treatment - Streetscape Improvements - Wellington Street, Waterloo was 
submitted to LPCTCC at its meeting on 19 May 2022, but was deferred to provide an 
updated plan with safe pedestrian facilities at all crossing points, tighter radii on all corners 
of the intersection of Wellington and Cope Streets that improve pedestrian safety and 
address issues associated with draining storm water at the intersection.  

 

Comments 

The NSW Government has approved the development of an underground Metro Station 
bound by Botany Road, Raglan, Cope and Wellington Streets in Waterloo. 

70



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Sydney Metro has reviewed the original design and submitted new design plans with the 
following changes that reflect the Committee's previous comments: 

 Providing tighter radii at north-east corner of Wellington and Cope Streets does not 
work, as swept path demonstrates it would make it difficult and unsafe for service 
vehicles turning left from Wellington Street into Cope Street and from Cope Street into 
Wellington Street. 

 The radii at south-east corner of the intersection has been tightened by replacing the 
two raised islands on eastern side of Cope Street, south of Wellington Street with two 
rain-gardens. This would slow vehicles when turning left from Wellington Street into 
Cope Street, improve pedestrian safety and would facilitate storm water draining. 

The radii on south-west corner of the intersection has been tightened by providing two rain-
gardens on western side of Cope Street, south of Wellington Street to improve pedestrian 
safety by slowing vehicles and would facilitate storm water drainage. 

Bicycle Lanes 

The proposal includes the provision of separated bicycle lanes on the northern and southern 
side of Wellington Street. Wellington Street is an existing cycle link in the City's on-road 
cycle network and a bicycle storage area and advanced stop line is provided for westbound 
bicycle riders at the traffic signals at Botany Road. Given the expected increase in activity to 
the area because of the Waterloo Metro Station, it is proposed to provide cycle facilities on 
Wellington Street to improve accessibility and safety for bicycle riders.  

The implementation of the bicycle lanes with the median to separate the bicycle lane from 
general traffic requires the reduction of the general traffic lanes to a minimum of 2.9 metres 
along Wellington Street.   

Future development in Waterloo will include an extension to the cycle lanes further east. 

Stop Control 

The proposal includes removal of the existing roundabout at the intersection of Wellington 
Street and Cope Street and provision of a Stop Control on Cope Street at the northern and 
southern approaches to Wellington Street. This would improve safety for people walking and 
accessing the Waterloo Metro Station. 

Pedestrian Crossings 

The proposal includes the provision of an at-grade pedestrian crossing across Wellington 
Street just east of Cope Street to improve pedestrian safety and access to the station. This 
will partly replace the existing roundabout at the intersection. The new design has realigned 
the location of the crossings at the intersection of Cope and Wellington Streets to match the 
current pedestrian desireline along the footpath, as best as possible. 

The new Metro Station will significantly increase pedestrian and vehicle activity in Wellington 
Street and as such, it is not possible to provide accurate data for the crossing warrants prior 
to opening of the station. The proposed crossing is in addition to crossings on Cope Street to 
provide safe and accessible access to the new station.  

71



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Parking  

The kerb space on the northern side of Wellington Street is a mix of timed and unrestricted 
parking with an existing bus zone. The kerb space on the southern side of Wellington Street 
is a mix of loading zone, timed permit parking and unrestricted parking. 

The proposal will require the installation of "No Stopping" restrictions to accommodate safe 
access for bicycle users and the proposed pedestrian crossings. The changes include the 
relocation of the bus zone and loading zone but will retain access for public transport and 
loading facilities such as drop -off and taxi facilites.  

To facilitate wider footpaths, upgraded intersections with improved accessibility for active 
transport users, as part of successful provision of high speed well connected public transport 
services in Waterloo, a total of 17 car parking spaces are required to be removed from 
Wellington Street. 

Consultation 

Consultation with the affected stakeholders was undertaken as part of the Development 
Application process for the Sydney Metro Project. 

Financial 

All costs associated with the proposal will be borne by the Applicant. 

NAZAR BADSHAH, SENIOR TRAFFIC ENGINEER 

72



73



2.25m

2.32m

Chainage 0 starts hereChainage 0 starts here

74



75



76



77



78



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Traffic Treatment - Permanent Road Closure - Farnell Street, Surry Hills 

TRIM Container No.: 2022/284946 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that the Committee endorse the permanent road closure of Farnell 
Street, Surry Hills between Fitzroy and Sandwell Streets. 

 

Voting Members for this Item 

 

Voting Members Support Object 

City of Sydney [Insert] [Insert] 

Transport for NSW [Insert] [Insert] 

NSW Police – Surry Hills PAC [Insert] [Insert] 

Representative for the Member for Sydney [Insert] [Insert] 

 
 
 

Advice 

Advice will be updated after the meeting. 

 

Background 

A food and beverage business located at the eastern corner of Fitzroy and Farnell Streets; 
Surry Hills has applied for an outdoor dining area on Farnell Street as part of the Alfresco 
night-time business program supported by the NSW government. 

The width of the footpath on Fitzroy Street in front of the restaurant is unable to safely 
accommodate both footpath dining and pedestrian access. Given that Farnell Street has no 
footpaths, the business is also not eligible for footway dining on Farnell Street. As such, the 

79

Item 22.



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

business has requested consideration to utilise Farnell Street provide outdoor seating 
opportunities, improve pedestrian access, and activate the area. 

Comments 

Farnell Street, Surry Hills between Fitzroy and Sandwell Streets is a local road under the 
jurisdiction of the City. Farnell Street runs in a north-south direction between Sandwell Street 
in the north and Fitzroy Street in the south. Farnell Street is approximately 4.0 metres wide 
with no footpaths and provides pedestrian access to residential properties located along the 
street. There is only one driveway along the street providing access to a property’s garage. 
There is no kerb side parking in the street and “No Stopping” restrictions are installed along 
both the eastern and western kerb sides. 

Sandwell Street, Surry Hills is a local two-way road that runs in an east-west direction 
between Hutchinson Street in the east and Farnell Street in the west. Sandwell Street has no 
footpaths and provides pedestrian and vehicles access to residential properties and 
businesses located along the streets. There is no kerb side parking in the street and “No 
Stopping” restrictions are installed along both the northern and southern kerb sides. 

To improve pedestrian access, provide outdoor seating opportunities and activate the area, 
a business has requested consideration to permanently close Farnell Street between Fitzroy 
and Sandwell Streets.  

Vehicle and speed surveys were undertaken in Farnell and Sandwell Streets from Monday 9 
December to Sunday 15 December 2019. A summary of the traffic survey data is outlined in 
the following table. 

Street Direction 85th Percentile 
Speed (km/h) 

7 Day AADT 
(veh/day) 

Farnell Street Northbound 19 7 

Southbound 19 3 

Sandwell Street Eastbound 19 6 

Westbound 19 18 

It is evident from the traffic survey data that Farnell and Sandwell Streets experiences low 
vehicle volumes and speeds. Both streets are mainly accessed by local traffic accessing the 
residential properties and businesses in the area. Vehicles on Farnell Street are mainly 
travelling towards the businesses on Sandwell Street. 

Farnell Street and Sandwell Street have an AADT of 10 vehicles/day and 24 vehicles/day 
respectively. With the proposed permanent road closure of Farnell Street between Fitzroy 
and Sandwell Streets, traffic on Farnell Street will now be diverted through Sandwell Street. 
Given the low AADT on Farnell Street, the diverted traffic is not expected create traffic 
impacts on Farnell Street. Furthermore, Sandwell Street experiences low pedestrian 

80



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

volumes and the increased AADT of 10 vehicles/day is not expected to impact on pedestrian 
safety and amenity. 

Farnell and Sandwell Streets provide vehicle access to rear property driveways to properties 
fronting Hutchinson and Fitzroy Streets. There are four driveways and one loading dock on 
Sandwell Street and one driveway on Farnell Street. 

The proposed permanent road closure of Farnell Street between Fitzroy and Sandwell 
Streets would not impact on vehicles access to the driveways in Farnell and Sandwell 
Streets. The road closure on Farnell Street would commence after the driveway on Farnell 
Street. Vehicle access to the driveway will be to and from Sandwell Street. 

Given that the existing vehicle speeds and traffic volumes are low along Farnell and 
Sandwell Streets impacts to pedestrian safety and amenity is not expected. Following the 
permanent road closure of Farnell Street and commencement of outdoor dining, pedestrian 
volumes in the area is expected to increase. However, given the low traffic volumes and 
vehicle speeds along Sandwell Street, impact to pedestrian safety and amenity is not 
expected. 

The treatment proposed to implement the road closures would continue to provide access to 
both pedestrians and bike riders. When the outdoor dining area is installed, adequate space 
would be provided to accommodate pedestrians in wheelchairs and prams and bike riders. 

The permanent road closure at Farnell Street will be implemented initially using bollards to 
prevent vehicle access. The road closure on Farnell Street would commence after the 
driveway on Farnell Street. Vehicle access to the driveway will be to and from Sandwell 
Street. When the budget is available in the Capital Works Program, the road closure would 
include streetscape treatment measures 

Consultation 

In compliance with Section 116 of the Roads Act 1993, the City consulted with local 
residents and businesses for a period of 28 days and advertised in the Sydney Morning 
Herald and Wentworth Courier.  

The City consulted local residents and businesses in the area. There were 422 letters sent 
out with four responses supporting the proposal and one response opposing the proposal. 
Two responses provided feedback on the proposal but neither supported nor opposed the 
proposal.  

The submissions are summarised below: 

Submission no. Support or Object  Description of 
submission 

City's comments 

Submission 1 - 4 Support Submissions 
supported the City's 
proposal to improve 
the amenity of the 
area and support a 
local business.  

The proposal would 
provide outdoor 
dining opportunities 
for current and future 
businesses in the 
area, improve 
pedestrian amenity 

81



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

and road safety in the 
area.  

Submission 5 Object The submission 
response stated that 
the closure would 
increase traffic on 
Hutchinson Street.  

The response also 
stated that the 
closure would impact 
on emergency access 
and tradesmen 
access to carry out 
urgent works sin 
Farnell Street. 

The AADT on Farnell 
Street is less than 10 
veh/day. As such, 
any impact of 
diverted traffic onto 
Hutchinson Street is 
minimal. In addition, 
closure of Farnell 
Street prevents rat-
running through the 
street and improves 
road safety.  

Emergency services 
personnel can 
remove the bollards 
to access the street 
during emergencies. 
Tradesmen requiring 
urgent access to the 
street can contact the 
City to arrange 
removal of the 
bollards. 

Submission 6 Feedback on 
proposal 

The submission 
requested for a 
pedestrian crossing 
on Fitzroy Street.  

Given that Fitzroy 
Street is a two lane 
one-way westbound 
road, it does not 
satisfy the 
requirements for a 
pedestrian crossing.  

A midblock signalised 
pedestrian crossing 
also does not meet 
the requirements for 
a signalised crossing 
due to close 
proximity of the two 
signalised 
intersections at both 
ends of Fitzroy 
Street.  

Submission 7 Feedback on the 
proposal 

The submission 
requested the 
following: 

The funding to close 
the road will be borne 
initially from City's 
outdoor dining 
programme. The 

82



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

- cost of the closure 
should not be borne 
using funds from rate 
payers. 

- a pedestrian 
crossing in Fitzroy 
Street 

- the impact of 
additional traffic on 
Hutchinson Street 

- a shared zone in 
Sandwell Street 

- convert Hutchinson 
Street to a one-way 
northbound 

permanent closure 
with streetscape 
improvements will be 
borne from the City's 
capital works 
programme similar to 
other traffic treatment 
projects in the City. 

The City installs 
Shared Zones in 
areas where there is 
high pedestrian 
volume to improve 
pedestrian safety. 
Pedestrian volume in 
Sandwell Street is 
low and as such 
would does not 
warrant a shared 
zone.  

Converting 
Hutchinson Street to 
a one way 
northbound is not 
supported as there 
has been no requests 
from residents or 
businesses in the 
area.   

 

Financial 

Funds are available in the current budget. 

GANESH VENGADASALAM, SENIOR TRAFFIC ENGINEER 

83



not to scale

Proposal
Farnell Street, Surry Hills
Proposed permanent road closure between Fitzroy and Sandwell 
Streets.

Source: nearmap 4 October 2021

Proposed permanent road 
closure of Farnell Street 
between Fitzroy and Sandwell 
Streets

Removable 
bollards

Removable bollards Alternate routes to Farnell and 
Sandwell Streets from Hutchinson 
StreetProposed permanent road 

closure of Farnell Street 
between Fitzroy and Sandwell 
Streets

84



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Other Authorities - PMNSW - Parking - Loading Zone and 2P Meter Parking - 
Darling Drive, Haymarket 

TRIM Container No.: 2022/483757 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that the Committee endorse the reallocation of parking on the eastern 
side of Darling Drive between the points 15 metres and 30 metres, south of Zollner Circuit as 
"Loading Zone Meter 8am-6pm Mon-Sun" and "2P Meter 6-10pm Mon-Sun 8am-10pm 
Public Holidays". 

 

Voting Members for this Item 

 

Voting Members Support Object 

Place Management NSW [Insert] [Insert] 

Transport for NSW [Insert] [Insert] 

NSW Police – Sydney City PAC [Insert] [Insert] 

Representative for the Member for Sydney [Insert] [Insert] 

 
 
 

Advice 

Advice will be updated after the meeting. 

 

Background 

Place Management NSW (PMNSW) is requesting endorsement for reallocation of two 15min 
parking spaces in Darling Drive, Haymarket to support Darling Square tenant operations and 
public visitation. There is an increased need for essential delivery vehicles access to service 
Darling Square business and resident buildings. The parking spaces, which is currently 15 
min parking are often occupied by private cars/uber vehicles, parking and often extending 

85

Item 23.



Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

their stay beyond 15min. Trucks have also been using the footpath to park due to a need for 
loading zones. 

A review of the area has identified a need for a loading zone to support key businesses 
operations and allow visitation for the public to Steam Mill Lane eateries, doctors, chemist, 
and retail. 

PMNSW believes that the proposed change will aid Darling Square building operations and 
increase parking options for stakeholders and businesses in the area therefore improving 
customer experience in line with our values. 

Comments 

The two kerb-side parking spaces on the eastern side of Darling Drive, Haymarket between 
Pier and Hay Streets where the changes are proposed, are currently signposted as ‘1/4 P’. 
Vehicle often overstay their time and it is difficult to monitor and enforce with Rangers which 
the loading zone and 2P ticketless parking meter will improve.  

The proposed 2 loading zone spaces will also improve safety for drivers conducting activities 
for loading and unloading as the loading zone is positioned near services. 

Parking signage will be replaced, managed and maintained by PMNSW in accordance with 
the relevant TNSW guidelines. 

Consultation 

In developing this solution, PMNSW have consulted with CBRE, contractors and monitored 
trends. This resulted in a consensus for the proposal. 

Financial 

All costs associated with the parking spaces, sign replacement, maintenance, supply and 
installation of 1 x parking metres will be borne by PMNSW.  

JASON CRAIG, SENIOR MANAGER, SECURITY OPERATIONS, PLACE MANAGEMENT 
NSW 

86



 12 Darling Drive Parking Changes 

2022 
Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 

Notification 

Parking Change Proposal – Place Management NSW  

Darling Drive, Darling Harbour, Sydney - Proposed change to parking spaces to achieve a better mixed use for 
businesses, tenants and visitors for the area. 

 

 

 Existing  Proposed 

 ¼ P 
 

 

 

Loading Zone Meter 8am-6pm Mon-Sun 

 

   2P Meter 6pm-10pm Mon-Sun 8am-10pm Public 
Holidays 

   Parking meter 

 

 

 

 

 

Zollner Circuit 

Pier St Off Ramp 

Steam Mill Lane 

Pier St 

  

15M 

87



 12 Darling Drive Parking Changes 

2022 
Local Pedestrian, Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 

Notification 

 

                PROPOSED 
Loading Zone Meter 8am-6pm 
Mon-Sun  
2P Meter 6pm-10pm Mon-Sun 
8am-10pm Public Holidays 

88



Local Pedestrian Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Schedule of Conditions 

Attachments 

Schedule of Conditions:- 

(A) On Street Event Conditions 

(B) Temporary Road Closure Conditions 

(C) Works Zone Conditions

89

Item 24.



90



Local Pedestrian Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Schedule A 
On Street Event Conditions 

1. The Applicant must carryout letterbox drops to all affected properties at least seven days 
prior to the start of road closures, and resolve any issues that may arise and all 
representations made by the affected properties. 

2. The Applicant must provide a telephone number of the supervisor responsible for the 
proposed event and include these contact details in the notification letters to affected 
properties. 

3. All costs associated with the event are to be borne by the Applicant. 

4. The Applicant shall indemnify and keep indemnified The City of Sydney against all claims, 
demands, suits, actions, damages and costs incurred by or charges made against The City 
of Sydney in respect to death or injury to any person or damage in any way arising from this 
event. 

5. The Applicant will be required to reimburse The City of Sydney for the cost of repair of any 
damage caused to the public way as a result of the activities associated with this event. 

6. A public liability insurance policy for an amount not less than $20,000,000 for any one 
occurrence must be held in joint names including The City of Sydney as an interested party 
– the Applicant of this event must inform its liability insurers of the terms of this Condition. 

7. The Applicant must close roads in accordance with Roads and Maritime Services (RMS) 
Traffic Control at Worksites Manual (AS1742.3) and the approved Traffic Management Plan 
unless otherwise directed by Police, RMS or authorised City officers. 

8. The Applicant must at all times provide a 4-metre wide emergency lane along the road to be 
closed. 

9. The Applicant must not occupy the road or footway until the road closure and associated 
Traffic Management Plan has been implemented. 

10. The Applicant must use RMS Accredited Traffic Controllers to manage pedestrian and traffic 
safety during the event. 

11. Where possible local access to properties shall be provided and an Accredited Traffic 
Controller be provided to manage the traffic ingress and egress at the location to ensure 
pedestrian and traffic safety. 

12. The Applicant must notify emergency services (namely NSW Police Service, Fire and 
Rescue and NSW Ambulance Service) of the proposed temporary road closure at least 
seven days prior to the event. 

13. The Applicant must remove all barriers and signs associated with the road closure at the 
times nominated to reopen the street to traffic. 

14. The Applicant must place an advertisement in a Sydney metropolitan newspaper at least 
seven days before the closure. 

15. The Applicant must contact the Transport Management Centre to confirm if a Road 
Occupancy Licence (ROL) is required. 

16. The Applicant must where practical make alternate parking arrangements for affected 
properties during the event. 

91



Local Pedestrian Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

17. The Applicant must advise car share operators of the approved closure seven days before 
the road is closed if a car share vehicle parking bay is located in the street. 

18. The City reserves the right to revoke this road closure approval at any time without any 
compensation to the Applicant.

92



Local Pedestrian Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Schedule B 
Temporary Road Closure Conditions 

The Applicant and their representatives: 

1. Must carry out letterbox drops to affected tenants, occupants, building managements and 
emergency services at least 14 days prior to the commencement of the road closure and 
include contact details for the supervisor. The Applicant must resolve, to the satisfaction of 
the City, any issues that may arise and all representations made by affected tenants and 
occupants. 

2. The Applicant must provide local access, where practical, for nearby affected properties. 

3. Roads must be closed in accordance with AS1742.3 and the approved Traffic Management 
Plan, unless otherwise directed by Police or authorised City officers. 

4. Before the road closure is implemented the Applicant MUST contact the City’s Construction 
Regulations Unit on 9265 9333 to obtain the relevant permits. 

5. Must not occupy the carriageway or footway of the road until the road closure has been 
implemented. 

6. Must at all times provide a 4-metre wide emergency lane along the closed road.  If the 
emergency lane cannot be provided, then the Applicant must discuss it with Emergency 
Services (namely Police, Fire Brigade and NSW Ambulance) and provide an alternative 
emergency access arrangement to their satisfaction. All services (fire hydrants etc) must be 
kept free of any obstructions. 

7. Must provide and maintain appropriate and adequate traffic measures (including detour signs 
and flagmen) for the safe movement of traffic and pedestrians. 

8. Must remove all barriers and signs associated with the road closure at the times nominated 
to reopen the road to traffic. 

9. Must indemnify the City against all claims for damage or injury that may result from the 
activity or occupation of part of the road or footpath during the activity. The applicant must 
provide documentary evidence of public liability insurance indemnifying Council for a 
minimum of $20,000,000 

10. Must reimburse the City for the cost of repair to any damage caused to the road or footpath 
as a result of the Applicant carrying out their activities 

11. Must comply with any reasonable directive of the City Rangers, Police or Roads and 
Maritime Services. 

12. Must comply with the City's Code of Practice for Construction Hours and Noise within the 
City Centre. 

13. Must place an advertisement in a Sydney metropolitan newspaper at least 7 days before the 
road closure. 

14. Must meet all costs associated with the closure and shall pay all fees in accordance with the 
Council’s current Fees and Charges. 

15. The Applicant is to obtain a Road Occupancy Licence from the Transport Management 
Centre prior to commencement of works. 

93



Local Pedestrian Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

16. The Applicant must contact the Sydney Coordination Office to discuss the event and its 
impacts on works associated with the CBD and South East Light Rail (CSELR) project or 
other major works in the CBD 

17. Must ensure a suitable Occupational Health & Safety Plan is in place for all personnel 
working at the site. 

18. Any variation on the approved date and conditions  will require the Applicant to submit a 
Deferred Date Application for consideration 

19. Note that in the event of a traffic incident or emergency, the Police will take control of all 
traffic and pedestrian arrangements. 

20. Must advise car share operators of the approved closure 14 days before the road is closed if 
a car share parking bay is located in the street. 

21. Failure to comply with these Conditions may result in the approval being revoked and not 
reinstated. 

.

94



Local Pedestrian Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

Schedule C 
Works Zone Conditions 

1. The applicant must notify adjacent properties of the Works Zone at least 14 days before the 
installation of the Works Zone and include contact details for the supervisor responsible for the 
Works Zone. A copy of the notification letter and distribution map must be provided to the City. 

2. The applicant must pay all fees associated with the Works Zone. 

3. The applicant must maintain public liability insurance for at least $20 million during the period 
of use of the Works Zone. Evidence of this insurance must be provided to the City and the 
Applicant must: 

3.1. effect the insurance policies with an insurer approved by us;  

3.2. effect the insurance policies showing the City of Sydney as an interested party; and 

3.3. produce to us a Certificate of Currency for the public liability insurance policy 

4. The applicant must comply with all relevant legislation, including Rule 181 of the New South 
Wales Road Rules 2014. The Works Zone is not to be used for commuting or private kerbside 
parking by builders, tradesperson or visitors to the site. 

5. It is an offence under Section 667 of the Local Government Act 1993 to willfully remove, destroy, 
deface, damage or otherwise interfere with notices or signs erected by the City. The applicant 
must immediately notify the City’s Traffic Works Coordinator of any lost or damaged signs 
adjoining the building site. 

6. The applicant must provide safe pedestrian access adjacent to the Works Zone during the hours 
of operation. All traffic and pedestrian control must be in accordance with the current version of 
AS1742.3 and its associated handbook and RMS’ Traffic Control at Work Sites Manual. 

7. The City may require the applicant to enter into a separate deed if pedestrian access through 
private land is required. 

8. The Applicant must give the City at least 2 weeks written notice if it wishes to suspend the Works 
Zone. Suspension of a Works Zone is at the City’s discretion. The minimum suspension period 
is two weeks. 

9. The Applicant must give the City at least 2 weeks written notice if the Works Zone is no longer 
required. The applicant must notify the City’s Traffic Works Coordinator on 
ccalabro@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au for the Works Zone to be removed. 

10. The Applicant must continue to pay the Kerbside Usage Fees until the Works Zone is 
completely removed. 

11. Works for major transport projects, such as the Sydney Light Rail Project and the Sydney City 
Centre Access Strategy, are currently being undertaken in the City’s Local Government Area 
and have priority access and use rights over City owned or controlled land including roads 
and footpaths. The City may at any time, and with at least 1 business days’ notice to the 
applicant, suspend or restrict the Works Zone if the Works Zone: 

 is required for a major transport project; or 

 is impracticable due to changes arising from a major transport project, such as traffic 
diversions; or 

 is otherwise unsuitable due to a major transport project. 

The applicant must make its own enquiries, on a regular basis, about the potential impact of 
major transport projects on the Works Zone and the construction program for its 
development site. 

12. The City may offset any fees owing by the applicant against the Deposit. The balance of the 
Deposit will be returned to the applicant when the Works Zone has been removed, all 
damages are rectified and all outstanding fees are paid in full. 

95

mailto:TWC@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au


Local Pedestrian Cycling and Traffic Calming Committee 20 October 2022 
 

13. The City may suspend or restrict the operation of a Works Zone for major events. Special traffic 
arrangements may be required during the Christmas and New Year period (generally from 1 
December to 2 January) and other major event days. The applicant must make its own 
enquiries, on a regular basis, about any major events near their development site. 

14. The applicant uses the Works Zone at its own risk. The City is not responsible for any loss, 
damage, injury or death relating to the applicant’s use of the Works Zone. The applicant 
releases the City from and indemnifies and keeps the City indemnified against all liability, 
claims, action or demand associated with the Works Zone. 

15. The Applicant shall indemnify and keep indemnified The City of Sydney against all loss 
(including financial loss), damage, expenses, claims, and liability suffered or incurred by us or 
our employees, consultants, agents, arising from the Applicant’s activities including: 

15.1. Loss of or damage to our property and any other property; and 

15.2. Damage, expense, loss or liability for personal injury 

16. The City is not responsible if the applicant is not able to gain access to the Works Zone. 

17. Failure to comply with these Conditions may result in the Works Zone being revoked and not 
reinstated. 

96


	Agenda
	1 Confirmation of Minutes of Meeting 2022/08 held on 15 September 2022
	2 Item for Committee Information - Smart Signage Trial - Elizabeth Street, Sydney and Chalmers Street, Surry Hills
	Attachment - Item for Committee Information - Smart Signage Trial - Elizabeth Street, Sydney and Chalmers Street, Surry Hills

	3 Street Event - Temporary Road Closures - Christmas in the City 2022
	Plan - Street Event - Temporary Road Closures - Christmas in the City 2022
	Plan - Street Event - Temporary Road Closures - Christmas in the City 2022
	Plan - Street Event - Temporary Road Closures - Christmas in the City 2022

	4 Street Event - Temporary Road Closures - Wayside Chapel Christmas Day 2022
	Attachment for Street Event - Temporary Road Closures - Wayside Chapel Christmas Day 2022

	5 Mobile Crane - Temporary Road Closure - Springfield Avenue, Potts Point
	Attachment - Mobile Crane - Temporary Road Closure - Springfield Avenue, Potts Point

	6 Works Zone - George Street, Sydney
	Attachment - Works Zone - George Street, Sydney

	7 Works Zone - Slip Street, Sydney
	Attachment - Works Zone - Slip Street, Sydney

	8 Works Zone - York Street, Sydney
	Attachment - Works Zone - York Street, Sydney
	Slide Number 1


	9 Works Zone - Hutchinson Street, Surry Hills
	Attachment - Works Zone - Hutchinson Street, Surry Hills

	10 Works Zone - Sparkes Street, Camperdown
	Plan - Works Zone - Sparkes Street, Camperdown

	11 Parking - No Parking - Wentworth Avenue, Sydney
	Attachment - Parking - No Parking - Wentworth Avenue, Sydney
	Proposal


	12 Parking - No Parking - Thurlow Lane, Redfern
	Attachment Parking - No Parking - Thurlow Lane, Redfern

	13 Parking - No Stopping - Little Dowling Street, Paddington
	Attachment -  Parking - No Stopping - Little Dowling Street, Paddington
	Sheets and Views
	A4



	14 Parking - No Stopping - Booth Street, Camperdown
	Attachment - for Parking - No Stopping - Booth Street, Camperdown
	Sheets and Views
	CONSULTATION



	15 Parking - No Stopping - Navins Lane, Zetland
	Attachment -  Parking - No Stopping - Navins Lane, Zetland

	16 Parking - Timed Parking - Forest Street, Forest Lodge
	Attachment - Parking - Timed Parking - Forest Street, Forest Lodge

	17 Parking - Timed Parking - Bourke Street, Waterloo
	Attachment - Parking - Timed Parking - Bourke Street, Waterloo

	18 Parking - 2P Parking - Newton Street, Alexandria
	Attachment Parking - 2P Parking - Newton Street, Alexandria
	Proposal


	19 Parking - P5mins - Dowling Street, Woolloomooloo
	Attachment - Parking - P5mins - Dowling Street, Woolloomooloo

	20 Traffic Treatment - Raised Crossing, No Stopping, Timed Parking, Bus Zone, Taxi Zone and Car Share - Baptist and Marriott Streets, Redfern
	Attachment - Traffic Treatment - Raised Crossing, No Stopping, Timed Parking, Bus Zone, Taxi Zone and Car Share - Baptist and Marriott Streets, Redfern

	21 Traffic Treatment - Streetscape Improvements - Intersection of Wellington Street and Cope Street, Waterloo
	Attachment - Traffic Treatment - Streetscape Improvements - Intersection of Wellington Street and Cope Street, Waterloo

	22 Traffic Treatment - Permanent Road Closure - Farnell Street, Surry Hills
	Plan - Traffic Treatment - Permanent Road Closure - Farnell Street, Surry Hills
	Proposal


	23 Other Authorities - PMNSW - Parking - Loading Zone and 2P Meter Parking - Darling Drive, Haymarket
	Attachment - Other Authorities - PMNSW - Parking - Loading Zone and 2P Meter Parking - Darling Drive, Haymarket

	24 Schedule of Conditions



